
 

Page 1 

 

 
AGENDA  
 
Meeting: Northern Area Planning Committee 

Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham, 
SN15 1ER 
 

Date: Tuesday 16 April 2024 

Time: 2.00 pm 
 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Ellen Ghey of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 718259 or email 
ellen.ghey@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines 01225 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
   Membership 
 
Cllr Chuck Berry (Chairman) 
Cllr Howard Greenman (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr David Bowler 
Cllr Steve Bucknell 
Cllr Gavin Grant 
Cllr Jacqui Lay 

Cllr Dr Brian Mathew 
Cllr Nic Puntis 
Cllr Mike Sankey 
Cllr Martin Smith 
Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall 

 

 
  Substitutes: 
 
Cllr Clare Cape 
Cllr Ruth Hopkinson 
Cllr Peter Hutton  

 

 

Cllr Dr Nick Murry 
Cllr Ashley O'Neill 
Cllr Tom Rounds  

 

http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/


 

Page 2 

 

Recording and Broadcasting Information 
 

Wiltshire Council may record this meeting for live and/or subsequent broadcast. At the 
start of the meeting, the Chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being 
recorded. The images and sound recordings may also be used for training purposes 
within the Council.  
 
By submitting a statement or question for a meeting you are consenting that you may be 
recorded presenting this and that in any case your name will be made available on the 
public record. The meeting may also be recorded by the press or members of the public.  
 
Any person or organisation choosing to film, record or broadcast any meeting of the 
Council, its Cabinet or committees is responsible for any claims or other liability resulting 
from them so doing and by choosing to film, record or broadcast proceedings they 
accept that they are required to indemnify the Council, its members and officers in 
relation to any such claims or liabilities.  
 
Details of the Council’s Guidance on the Recording and Webcasting of Meetings is 
available on request. Our privacy policy can be found here.  

 
Parking 

 
To find car parks by area follow this link. The three Wiltshire Council Hubs where most 
meetings will be held are as follows: 
 
County Hall, Trowbridge 
Bourne Hill, Salisbury 
Monkton Park, Chippenham 
 
County Hall and Monkton Park have some limited visitor parking. Please note for 
meetings at County Hall you will need to log your car’s registration details upon your 
arrival in reception using the tablet provided. If you may be attending a meeting for more 
than 2 hours, please provide your registration details to the Democratic Services Officer, 
who will arrange for your stay to be extended. 
 

Public Participation 
 

Please see the agenda list on following pages for details of deadlines for submission of 
questions and statements for this meeting. 
 
For extended details on meeting procedure, submission and scope of questions and 
other matters, please consult Part 4 of the council’s constitution. 
 
The full constitution can be found at this link.  
 
Our privacy policy is found here. 
 
For assistance on these and other matters please contact the officer named above for 
details 
 

https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2FecCatDisplay.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D14031&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=tgq%2B75eqKuPDwzwOo%2BRqU%2FLEEQ0ORz31mA2irGc07Mw%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fparking-car-parks&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634060435%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=FK5U7igUosMzWIp1%2BhQp%2F2Z7Wx%2BDt9qgP62wwLMlqFE%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Fecsddisplayclassic.aspx%3Fname%3Dpart4rulesofprocedurecouncil%26id%3D630%26rpid%3D24804339%26path%3D13386&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=dYUgbzCKyoh6zLt%2BWs%2F%2B6%2BZcyNNeW%2BN%2BagqSpoOeFaY%3D&reserved=0
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fcms.wiltshire.gov.uk%2Feccatdisplayclassic.aspx%3Fsch%3Ddoc%26cat%3D13386%26path%3D0&data=04%7C01%7Cbenjamin.fielding%40wiltshire.gov.uk%7C032dd41f93844cfa21f108d8de2a5276%7C5546e75e3be14813b0ff26651ea2fe19%7C0%7C0%7C637503620634070387%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=VAosAsVP2frvb%2FDFxP34NHzWIUH60iC2lObaISYA3Pk%3D&reserved=0
https://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/democracy-privacy-policy


 

Page 3 

 

AGENDA 

 Part I  

 Items to be considered when the meeting is open to the public 

1   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies or substitutions for the meeting. 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 24) 

 To approve and sign as a true and correct record the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on 28 February 2024. 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee.  

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements through the Chair. 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public.  
 
Statements 
 
Members of the public who wish to speak either in favour or against an 
application or any other item on this agenda are asked to register no later than 
10 minutes before the start of the meeting. If it is on the day of the meeting 
registration should be done in person. 
 
The rules on public participation in respect of planning applications are linked to 
in the Council’s Planning Code of Good Practice. The Chairman will allow up to 
3 speakers in favour and up to 3 speakers against an application, and up to 3 
speakers on any other item on this agenda. Each speaker will be given up to 3 
minutes and invited to speak immediately prior to the item being considered. 
 
Members of the public and others will have had the opportunity to make 
representations on planning applications and other items on the agenda, and to 
contact and lobby their local elected member and any other members of the 
planning committee, prior to the meeting.  
 
Those circulating such information prior to the meeting, written or photographic, 
are advised to also provide a copy to the case officer for the application or item, 
in order to officially log the material as a representation, which will be verbally 
summarised at the meeting by the relevant officer, not included within any officer 
slide presentation if one is made. Circulation of new information which has not 
been verified by planning officers or case officers is also not permitted during the 



 

Page 4 

 

meetings. 
 
Questions 
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the Council 
received in accordance with the constitution which excludes, in particular, 
questions on non-determined planning applications. 
 
Those wishing to ask questions are required to give notice of any such 
questions in writing to the officer named on the front of this agenda no later than 
5pm on Tuesday 9 April 2024 in order to be guaranteed of a written response. 
In order to receive a verbal response, questions must be submitted no later than 
5pm on Thursday 11 April 2024. Please contact the officer named on the front 
of this agenda for further advice. Questions may be asked without notice if the 
Chairman decides that the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 
 

6   Planning Appeals and Updates (Pages 25 - 26) 

 To receive details of completed and pending appeals and other updates as 
appropriate. 
 

 Planning Applications  

 To consider and determine the following planning applications: 
 

7   PL/2022/05412: Land off Dog Trap Lane, Minety (Pages 27 - 58) 

 Proposed Development is for a battery storage facility and ancillary 
infrastructure (Revision of PL/2022/00404). 
 

8   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
taken as a matter of urgency. 
 
 
 

 Part II  

 Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public 
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt information 

would be disclosed. 
 



 
 
 

 
 
Northern Area Planning Committee 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING HELD 
ON 28 FEBRUARY 2024 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, 
MONKTON PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
Cllr Chuck Berry (Chairman), Cllr Howard Greenman (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Gavin Grant, Cllr Jacqui Lay, Cllr Dr Brian Mathew, Cllr Nic Puntis, 
Cllr Martin Smith and Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall 
 
Also Present: 
 Adrian Walker, Alwyn Thomas, Max Hirst, Ellen Ghey 
  

 
9 Apologies 

 
Apologies were received from: 
 
Cllr Steve Bucknell 
 
Membership Changes: 
 
Councillor Chuck Berry was announced as the new Chairman of the Northern 
Area Planning Committee. 
 
Councillor Mike Sankey was welcomed as the newest member of the 
Committee. 
 

10 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the last meeting of the Committee held on 31 January 2024 
were considered for approval by the committee. 
 
After discussion it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
To remove the words “up to” from Agenda item 7 - PL/2022/09258: Minety 
Substation, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16. 
 
To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on 6 
December 2023 as a true and correct record. 
 

11 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 
 
 

12 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chair informed the Committee that it would no longer be considering 
Agenda Item 9: PL/2022/09258: Minety Substation, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16, 
during this meeting. At the previous meeting, the Committee resolved to defer 
the application pending the submission of additional information provided by the 
applicant alongside a Unilateral Undertaking.  
 

13 Public Participation 
 
The Committee noted the rules on public participation. 
 

14 Planning Appeals and Updates 
 
Councillor Chuck Berry invited Adrian Walker, Development Management Team 
Leader, to briefly update the Committee on the pending and determined 
appeals as per the appeals report included within the Agenda Pack. 
 
Following which, it was: 
 
Resolved: 
 
The Committee noted the appeals report for the period 19 January 2024 to 
16 February 2024. 
 

15 PL/2023/04681: 5 Studley Gardens, Studley, Calne, SN11 9FR 
 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Armstrong spoke in support of the application. 
Cllr Ioan Rees of Calne Without Parish Council spoke in objection of the 
application. 
 
Officers from the Development Management Area Team introduced the report 
which recommended that the Committee grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions, for the relocation of the existing 1.8-metre-tall fencing to a position 
some 2.0m from the edge of the private drive, thereby moving part of the 
incidental grass strip into the private garden area. The fence is to be moved out 
approximately 0.8m resulting in approximately 1.3m of hedging remaining. 
Some of the shrubbery/hedging will be removed, with the two ornamental trees 
remaining. 
 
Key considerations identified included the principle of development, design and 
scale, impact on residential amenity and highways and parking issues. Attention 
was drawn to the representation from Calne Without Parish Council, concerned 
over the potential impacts on both the listed buildings and the wider area. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
to the officer.  
 

Page 6



 
 
 

 
 
 

It was clarified that the ownership of the land belonged to the applicant. The 
trees situated near the fence would remain outside it and any landscaping 
conditions would have long since expired. It was explained that Highways would 
still involve themselves in private road matters but had no objections to this 
application. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
committee as detailed above. 
 
A debate followed where the progress made in discussions between the 
applicant and the Parish Council was discussed and the potential impact on the 
nearby trees from moving the fence. 
 
During debate a motion to grant was moved by Cllr Nic Puntis and seconded by 
Cllr Gavin Grant. An amendment was put forward to condition the protection of 
the nearby trees, however this was withdrawn. 
 
Resolved 
 
That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions 
and informatives: 
 
Conditions 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the 

expiration of three years from the date of this permission. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the following approved plans: 
Existing Site Block Plan 
Proposed Site Block Plan (Received by LPA 12th June 2023) 
Site Location Plan (Received by LPA 22nd June 2023) 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development hereby permitted shall match in material, colour and 
texture those detailed on the approved drawings and application form. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
Informatives 
 
4. The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does 
not include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 

Page 7



 
 
 

 
 
 

structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public 
Sewer although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
5. The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect 
any private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying 
out of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it 
will be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent 
before such works commence. 
 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 
6. Please note that Council offices do not have the facility to receive 
material samples. Please deliver material samples to site and inform the 
Planning Officer where they are to be found. 
 
7. Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance 
with Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in 
writing with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
8. The applicant is advised that the development hereby approved may 
represent chargeable development under the Community Infrastructure 
Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Wiltshire Council's CIL Charging 
Schedule. 
 

16 PL/2023/09202: The Mount, Upper Seagry, SN15 5EX 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Dance spoke in objection of the application. 
Mr Kernon spoke in support of the application. 
Mr Barber, on behalf of Seagry Parish Council, spoke in objection of the 
application. 
 
Officers from the Development Management Area Team introduced the report 
which recommended that the Committee grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions, for variation of the design, materials and access lay out. 
 
Key considerations identified included the Principle of Development, Impact on 
the Character, Appearance and Visual Amenity of the Locality and Impact on 
Residential Amenity. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
to the officer. Concerns were raised over the increase in size between plans. 
 

Page 8



 
 
 

 
 
 

It was clarified that officers did not consider the difference a significant increase 
and that the drawings were to scale and accurate. It was reassured that 
enforcement could be taken if the building was not built in accordance with 
agreed plans. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
committee as detailed above. 
 
The unitary division member, Councillor Howard Greenman then spoke in 
objection of the application. 
 
A debate followed where the Committee considered Wiltshire Council’s Core 
Policy 51 and Core Policy 57, considering the plans to be against these policies. 
 
During the debate Officers warned Cllrs against prejudicial thought based on 
previous applications. Cllrs wanted to ensure it was made aware that this had 
not been the case. 
 
It was understood that there had been a cheaper option to buy the building “off 
the shelf” which meant different dimensions. However, Cllrs felt the applicant 
should have returned to ask for planning permission before pressing ahead. 
 
During debate a motion to refuse was proposed by Cllr Howard Greenman and 
seconded by Cllr Gavin Grant, after which it was: 
 
Resolved 
 
That planning permission be refused. 
 

17 PL/2022/09258: Minety Substation, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16 9DX 
 
This item was withdrawn from the agenda. 
 

18 PL/2022/04524: Land East of Ravensroost Road, Ravenshurst Farm, 
Minety, Malmesbury, SN16 9RJ 
 
Public Participation 
Ms Brooks spoke in objection of the application. 
Mr King spoke in objection of the application. 
Mrs King spoke in objection of the application. 
Mr George Hall spoke in support of the application. 
 
Officers from the Development Management Area Team introduced the report 
which recommended that the Committee grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions, for a Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) with a capacity of 
c.50MW. The batteries would be housed within containers which utilise air 
conditioning units for cooling purposes. The facility is supported by ancillary 
development, including transformers, inverters, and switch gear units. The site 
would also be surrounded by a security fencing and new landscaping and 
biodiversity enhancements. 

Page 9



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Key considerations identified were: 
 

a) Whether the proposal is acceptable in principle. 
 

b) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of agricultural land. 
 

c) Whether the proposal would be harmful in terms of its landscape and 
visual impact. 

 
d) Whether the scheme would give rise to an adverse impact on residential 

amenity. 
 

e) Whether the proposal would have an adverse impact upon highway 
safety or public rights of way. 

 
f) Whether the scheme would cause harm to protected species and/or their 

habitats. 
 

g) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of trees and ancient 
woodland. 

 
h) Whether the scheme would cause harm to areas of archaeological 

interest or to heritage assets; and 
 

i) Whether the proposal would result in any other adverse environmental 
impacts. 

 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
to the officer. 
 
It was clarified a previous permission for the site that was granted in 2018 had 
lapsed. Network Rail hadn’t been consulted as the proposed site was not within 
close proximity to railway lines. It was confirmed that the need assessment was 
based on a need for renewable energies and that the public protection officer 
had raised no objections in relation to hazardous materials. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
committee as detailed above. 
 
The unitary division members, Councillor Chuck Berry and Cllr Jacqui Lay, then 
spoke in objection of the application. 
 
A debate followed where the Committee considered that there had been no 
representations by official bodies and no statutory opposition. The national need 
for battery storage was also highlighted. 
 
Councillors also considered the impact of the site on local residents, the 
landscape and the potential for significant sound pollution. Wiltshire Council’s 
Core Policy 51 and Core Policy 57 were also referred to. 

Page 10



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
During debate a motion to grant was moved by Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall and 
seconded by Cllr Dr Brian Mathew. Following a vote, the motion was lost. A 
motion to refuse was then moved by Cllr Gavin Grant and Cllr Howard 
Greenman, and it was: 
 
Resolved 
That planning permission be refused. 
 

19 PL/2023/03501: Land Near Minety Substation, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16 9DX 
 
Public Participation 
Mr Greslow spoke in support of the application. 
 
Officers from the Development Management Area Team introduced the report 
which recommended that the Committee grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions, to vary the conditions of planning permission reference 0/03528/FUL 
in order to secure amendments to the layout of the approved development. The 
amendments relate to a reduction in the extent and number of solar panels, the 
introduction of battery storage units, and a proposed change to the access 
strategy. 
 
The main issue for consideration was whether the proposed amendments to the 
conditions of planning permission reference 20/03528/FUL should be granted, 
as the principle of development could not be reconsidered. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
to the officer, where it was clarified that Network Rail had not been consulted. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
committee as detailed above. 
 
It was also noted that 3 objections had been received by planning officers in 
writing. 
 
The unitary division members, Councillor Elizabeth Threlfall, then spoke in 
support of the application. 
 
A debate followed where the Committee considered that the proposed site was 
already within a developed area, and that the Strategic Planning Committee had 
considered and proposed changes to this application which had then been 
agreed. 
 
During debate a motion to grant, was moved by Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall and 
seconded by Cllr Howard Greenman. An additional condition was included to 
place noise reduction kits on all invertors for ecological protection. 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 11



 
 
 

 
 
 

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions 
and informatives: 
 
An additional condition was included to place noise reduction kits on all 
invertors for ecological protection. 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall begin before the 07 April 

2025. 
 

REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004. 
 
2. The permission hereby granted shall be for a temporary period and 
shall expire 40 years from the date that electricity from the development is 
first exported to the electricity distribution network (‘First Export Date’) or 
no later than 44 years from the date of this decision, whichever is the 
soonest. Written confirmation of the First Export Date shall be provided to 
the Local Planning Authority no later than 1 calendar month after that 
First Export Date. Within 6 months of the date of expiry of this planning 
permission, or, if sooner, the cessation of the use of the solar panels for 
electricity generation purposes for a continuous period of 6 months, the 
solar panels together with any supporting/associated infrastructure 
including the inverter stations, security equipment, poles and fencing 
shall be removed from the land and the land restored to its former 
agricultural condition in accordance with a scheme of work to be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning authority. The 
scheme of work, including a restoration plan and a decommissioning 
scheme that takes account of a recent ecological survey, shall be 
submitted to the local planning authority not less than six months before 
the removal of the installation. 
 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and the circumstances of the use. 
 
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
with the details shown in the following approved plans, drawings and 
documents: 
 
Site Location Plan – RL-J082-1 
Minety PV Layout - 21 April 2023 
Landscape Masterplan – P19-2270_13 Rev. N – 29 March 2023 
Construction Compound – 15 November 2021 
Typical PV Table Details Rev. A – 3 June 2021 
Typical Trench Sections Details Rev. A – 6 April 2020 
Typical Spares Container Details Rev. A – 6 April 2020 
Typical Battery Storage System Details 1 Rev. A – 6 April 2020 
Typical Battery Station Linear Rev A 21 April 2023 
Typical Customer Switchgear Details Rev. A – 6 April 2020 
Typical Inverter Substation Details Rev. A – 6 April 2020 
Typical Fence, Track & CCTV Details Rev. A – 6 April 2020 

Page 12



 
 
 

 
 
 

Arboricultural Impact Assessment Rev. A– March 2023 
Noise Assessment for Planning – Acoustics Report A1579 R02b – 23 
March 2023 
 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper 
planning. 
 
4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 
the scheme for the discharge of surface water included within the 
approved Drainage Technical Note (v2, dated 16 March 2023), Flood Risk 
Assessment (v5, dated August 2020) and FRA Addendum (v2, dated 
August 2020). 
 
REASON: To comply with Core Policy 67: Flood Risk of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy (adopted January 2015) and to ensure that the development can 
be adequately drained without increasing flood risk to others. 
 
5. Notwithstanding the contents of the Construction Traffic Management 
Plan (April 2020 Updated July 2023) by Pegasus Group, no development 
shall commence on site (including any works of demolition), until a 
detailed Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
Thereafter, the approved CTMP shall be implemented and adhered to 
throughout the entire construction period unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The CTMP shall provide details as 
appropriate, including the following: 
 
i. mitigation measures at the access points throughout construction. 
ii. the signing and routing (including a plan) of all construction traffic with 
particular reference to HGVs and deliveries. 
iii. a Traffic Management Plan (including signage drawing(s)) 
iv. details of the number (daily/weekly) and size of delivery vehicles 
v. details of the number of staff vehicle movements. 
vi. details of temporary/permanent Traffic Regulation Orders 
vii. details of the construction timeframe and any separate phases of 
development 
viii. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors. 
ix. the loading and unloading of plant and materials. 
x. the storage of plant and materials used in constructing the 
development. 
xi. the erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative 
displays and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate. 
xii. wheel washing facilities. 
xiii. measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during 
construction. 
xiv. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition 
and construction works. 
xv. measures for the protection of the natural environment. 
xvi. hours of construction, including deliveries; and 

Page 13



 
 
 

 
 
 

xvii. details of public engagement both prior to and during construction 
works. 
xviii. Details of the schemes to reinstate and close the proposed western 
and eastern construction access points including a timetable to carry out 
the works. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring 
residential properties, the amenities of the area in general, the natural 
environment, and in the interests of highway safety. 
 
8. Prior to the use of the western (proposed) and eastern (proposed) 
access points by construction traffic, they shall be laid out and 
constructed in accordance with the details provided within the 
Construction Traffic Management Plan (Dated July 2023 / Revision A) and 
shown on Figures 3.1, 3.2 & 3.3). Furthermore, the first 15 metres of the 
accesses measured from the edge of the carriageway, shall be 
consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The accesses shall 
be maintained as such thereafter during the construction period. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
9. Prior to the use of the western (proposed), central (existing) and 
eastern (proposed) access points by construction traffic, the required 
visibility splays shall be provided in accordance with the details provided 
within the Construction Traffic Management Plan (Dated July 2023 / 
Revision A) and shown on Figures 3.1, 3.2 & 3.3). The approved visibility 
splays shall thereafter be permanently maintained free from obstruction to 
vision above a height of 900mm above the level of the adjacent highway 
during the construction period. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
10. Any gates at the proposed eastern and western accesses shall be set 
back 16 metres from the edge of the carriageway and such gates shall 
open inwards only. 
 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
11. Prior to the commencement of works, including site clearance, 
vegetation clearance, boundary treatment works and ground 
works/excavation, a finalised Ecological Mitigation and Enhancement Plan 
(EMEP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The EMEP shall illustrate all existing ecological 
features together with avoidance and mitigation measures in relation to 
the scheme layout, and clear indication of those features and habitats to 
be retained. ‘No construction’ zones/buffer zones and root protection 
areas and associated distances/widths shall be illustrated on the EMEP 
and this should include, but not be limited to, the 20m buffer to be 
incorporated alongside the adjacent SSSIs and the buffer between the 
construction compound and nearby ecological features, including 

Page 14



 
 
 

 
 
 

hedgerows, trees and ponds. The EMEP shall also illustrate all areas of 
habitat to be enhanced and areas of new habitat creation including 
wildflower meadows and areas of planting. Any ecological enhancement 
features such as bat roost boxes and bird nest boxes shall be illustrated 
on the plan. 
 
 
The EMEP must also illustrate the proposed location of the perimeter 
fencing in relation to existing boundary features and habitats to be 
retained and there will be no encroachment upon these features and no 
construction or operational works shall extend into the adjacent buffers 
and access these areas will be restricted to that necessary for habitat 
maintenance purposes alone. 
 
Development shall be undertaken in strict accordance with the approved 
EMEP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection, mitigation and enhancement of 
biodiversity. Furthermore, the application contained inadequate detail to 
enable this matter to be wholly resolved prior to determination, and P19-
2270_23 Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Plan NOV 2021 
submitted in support of the planning application was found to be lacking 
all the relevant details. Therefore, a finalised and suitably detailed and 
appropriate EMEP must be agreed with the Local Planning Authority 
before development commences to ensure compliance with legislation in 
respect of protected habitats and species, NPPF 2021, Core Policy 50 of 
the Wiltshire Core Strategy and best practice. 
 
12. Prior to the commencement of works, including site clearance, 
vegetation clearance, boundary treatment works and ground 
works/excavation, a finalised Construction Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The CEMP shall provide details of the avoidance, 
mitigation and protective measures to be implemented before and during 
the construction phase, including but not necessarily limited to, the 
following:  
 
a) Details of all mitigation measures and identification of ecological 
protection areas/buffer zones and tree root protection areas as well as 
details and specification of physical means of protection, e.g. temporary 
fencing to demarcate buffer zones such as the zone of at least 15m in 
width between the construction compound and hedgerow and buffer zone 
of 20m between the site and adjacent SSSIs. Details of specific measures 
such as gaps in fencing to avoid causing harm to biodiversity features 
should also be stipulated. Measures should be illustrated on a plan (this 
could comprise the EMEP). 
 
b) Details and timing of any update surveys required pre-commencement 
of works on site such as for badgers. 
 

Page 15



 
 
 

 
 
 

c) Precautionary working method statements, including the restrictions to 
the timing of such works, such as sensitive vegetation clearance method 
in respect of birds. 
 
d) Mitigation strategies already agreed with the local planning authority 
prior to determination, such as for great crested newts and bats; this 
should comprise the preconstruction/construction related elements of 
strategies only. 
 
e) Work schedules for activities with specific timing requirements in order 
to avoid/reduce potential harm to ecological receptors, and stipulation of 
work activities to be overseen by a licensed ecologist and/or ecological 
clerk of works (ECoW). 
 
f) Key personnel, responsibilities and contact details (including Site 
Manager and ecologist/ECoW). 
 
g) Schedule for compliance checks to be completed by a competent 
person(s), likely the ecologist/EcoW, prior to, during and post-completion 
of construction works. 
 
h) A compliance report must be provided to the local planning authority 
within four weeks of the end of construction and the report shall include 
photographic evidence. 
 
Development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved 
CEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for ecological 
receptors prior to and during construction. In addition, the CEMP 
provided alongside the planning application did not include all the 
necessary details and therefore, a finalised CEMP must be approved by 
the Local Planning Authority before development commences to ensure 
compliance with legislation in respect of protected habitats and species, 
NPPF 2021, Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and best 
practice. 
 
13. Within four weeks of the end of the construction phase a compliance 
report shall be submitted to the local planning authority. The report shall 
detail all works overseen by the ecologist/EcoW and all compliance 
checks undertaken by the aforementioned competent person prior to, 
during and post-completion of construction works. Associated dates of 
visits to site shall be stipulated in the compliance report and photographic 
evidence shall be provided. 
 
REASON: To ensure works are undertaken in strict accordance with the 
approved EMEP and CEMP prior to and during construction, and that 
works are conducted in line with current best practice and are supervised 
by a suitably licensed and competent professional ecological 
consultant/ECoW where necessary. 

Page 16



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
14. Prior to the commencement of works, including site clearance, 
vegetation clearance, boundary treatment works and ground 
works/excavation, a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The LEMP will include long term objectives and targets; a plan 
identifying retained and proposed habitat features; and management 
responsibilities and maintenance schedules for each ecological feature 
and habitat within the development. The LEMP shall also include a 
schedule for monitoring success of the management prescriptions, 
incorporating review and necessary adaptive management and remedial 
works in order to attain targets. The monitoring schedule shall stipulate 
the years after the commencement of operation that a monitoring report, 
to be prepared by an independent ecologist, shall be submitted to the 
Local Planning Authority. The LEMP will also cover the period of 
decommissioning at the end of the operational phase of the development. 
The LEMP shall provide details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by 
which long-term implementation of the plan will be secured. The 
development shall be undertaken and managed in accordance with the 
approved LEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure the implementation of appropriate long-term 
management of landscape and ecological features and habitats for the 
lifetime of the development. In addition, the LEMP provided alongside the 
planning application did not include all the necessary details and 
therefore, a finalised LEMP must be approved by the Local Planning 
Authority before development commences to ensure compliance with 
legislation, NPPF 2021, Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy and 
best practice. 
 
15. Prior to the commencement of works, including site clearance, 
vegetation clearance, boundary treatment works and ground 
works/excavation, an Ecological Monitoring Plan shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plan should 
set out the monitoring scheme and should include the following: 
 
Commitment to undertake surveys immediately following construction 
completion to establish the baseline for future monitoring. 
Identification of the key features to be monitored and methodology to be 
used. 
 
Monitoring targets with specific measurable thresholds for success for 
each key feature with remediation measures incorporated where 
necessary. 
 
Commitment to continue monitoring for the operational lifetime of the 
installation in years 1, 3, 5, 10, 25 and 40, and a 5-year aftercare plan 
following completion of restoration. 
 

Page 17



 
 
 

 
 
 

Commitment to prepare a report after each monitoring exercise, relating 
findings to those of previous years and the intended targets. The report 
will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 6 months of each 
monitoring visit. 
 
REASON: To ensure the protection and enhancement of biodiversity. 
 
16. No external artificial lighting shall be used or installed on site until lux 
contour plots/lighting contour plans for all proposed lighting have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
plots/plans must demonstrate that bat habitat to be retained will be 
maintained as ‘dark corridors’. Details of mitigation measures that would 
be implemented where necessary, to minimise light spill shall also be 
provided. Lighting proposals shall be in accordance with the appropriate 
Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institution of Lighting 
Professionals in their Guidance Note GN01/21 ‘The Reduction of 
Obtrusive Light’ and their Guidance Note GN08-18 ‘Bats and artificial 
lighting in the UK’, issued jointly with the Bat Conservation Trust. 
Construction phase lighting shall be limited to two tower systems 
comprising 6 x 160W MultiLED which are only to be used where necessary 
during the winter months and this is subject to the requirements of this 
condition having been met. 
 
Lighting at the site shall be in strict accordance with the approved details 
and no additional external lighting shall be installed either during 
construction or operation unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To minimise light spill and to minimise potential for adverse 
effects on bats and other wildlife. In addition, insufficient information was 
provided alongside the planning application to allow this matter to be 
wholly resolved prior to determination. Therefore, further details to 
demonstrate that dark corridors will be achievable must be submitted to, 
and approved by, the Local Planning Authority before development 
commences to ensure compliance with legislation in respect of protected 
habitats and species, NPPF 2021, Core Policy 50 of the Wiltshire Core 
Strategy and best practice. 
 
17. Prior to decommissioning, an ecological assessment and mitigation 
report shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written 
approval. The site shall be decommissioned in strict accordance with the 
approved report. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for ecological 
receptors during the decommissioning phase and to ensure compliance 
with legislation in respect of protected habitats and species, planning 
policy and best practice. 
 
18. No development shall commence on site and no equipment, 
machinery or materials shall be brought on to site for the purpose of 

Page 18



 
 
 

 
 
 

development until tree protective fencing has been erected in accordance 
with the details set out in the Arboricultural Impact Assessment (June 
2021) by Barton Hyett Associates. 
 
The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire development 
phase and until all equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been 
removed from the site. Such fencing shall not be removed or breached 
during construction operations. No retained tree/s shall be cut down, 
uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be topped or lopped 
other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 
topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance British 
Standard 3998: 2010 “Tree Work – Recommendations” or arboricultural 
techniques where it can be demonstrated to be in the interest of good 
arboricultural practice. 
 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree 
shall be planted at the same place, of a size and species and planted at 
such time, that must be agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 
No fires shall be lit within 15 metres of the furthest extent of the canopy of 
any retained trees or hedgerows or adjoining land and no concrete, oil, 
cement, bitumen or other chemicals shall be mixed or stored within 10 
metres of the trunk of any tree or group of trees to be retained on the site 
or adjoining land. In this condition “retained tree” means an existing tree 
which is to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the expiration of 
five years from the first operation or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the later. 
 
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention 
of trees on the site in the interests of visual amenity. 
 
19. All soft landscaping comprised in the approved details of landscaping, 
as shown on the Landscape Masterplan drawing no. P19-2270_13 Rev. N 
shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the 
first operation of the development or the completion of the development 
whichever is the sooner, or in accordance with a schedule and timetable 
to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All shrubs, trees 
and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall be 
protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, 
within a period of five years, die, are removed, or become seriously 
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with 
others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the 
development and the protection of existing important landscape features. 
 

Page 19



 
 
 

 
 
 

20. In the event that contamination is encountered at any time when 
carrying out the approved development, the Local Planning Authority 
must be advised of the steps that will be taken by an appropriate 
contractor to deal with the contamination and provide a written remedial 
statement to be followed by a written verification report that confirms the 
works that have been undertaken to render the development suitable for 
use. 
 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users 
of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the 
development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
21. The development hereby permitted shall not be first brought into use 
until all of the external walls of the battery storage units, other site 
structures and security fencing have been painted/finished in a colour the 
detail of which shall be submitted to the Local planning authority for 
approval and shall be either moss green or brown. The colour finish shall 
be retained in perpetuity thereafter. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and 
appearance of the area. 
 
22. There shall be no burning undertaken on site at any time. 
 
REASON: To protect the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring 
residential properties. 
 
23. The mitigation measures detailed within section 4.2 of the Noise 
Assessment (March 2023) report by Ion Acoustics shall be implemented 
and the noise rating level (BS4142:2014) of plant shall be no more than 
those specified in Table 13 7 & 8 of the Noise Assessment; A1579 RO2b 
during daytime (0700–2300hrs) and during night-time (2300-0700hrs) at all 
residential receptors. 
 
REASON: To ensure the creation/retention of an environment free from 
intrusive levels of noise and activity in the interests of the amenity of the 
area and to protect the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring 
residential properties. 
 
24. A post installation noise assessment shall be carried out within 3 
months of completion of the development to confirm compliance with the 
submitted Noise Assessment (March 2023) report by Ion Acoustics and 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. Any 
additional steps required to achieve compliance shall thereafter be taken 
in accordance with a timetable to be agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority. The details as submitted and approved shall be implemented 
and thereafter be permanently retained. 
 

Page 20



 
 
 

 
 
 

REASON: To protect local amenity from adverse effects of noise. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
Nothing in this permission shall authorise the diversion, obstruction, or 
stopping up of any public right of way that crosses the site. You are 
advised to contact the Public Rights of Way officer on 
RightsOfWayConsultations@wiltshire.gov.uk. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
The proposal includes alteration to the public highway. The permission 
hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out works on 
the highway. The applicant is advised that a licence will be required from 
Wiltshire’s Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any 
footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the 
highway. Please contact the vehicle access team on telephone 01225 
713352 or email vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk for further details. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
The applicant should note that it will be necessary for a Great crested 
newt District Level Licence to be obtained from Natural England in order 
to allow the works to proceed lawfully. Great crested newts and their 
habitat are protected at all times by the Conservation of Habitats and 
Species (Amendment) (EU Exit) Regulations 2019. Planning permission 
for development does not provide a defence against prosecution under 
this legislation. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and 
Countryside Act (1981) and the Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence 
to disturb or harm any protected species, or to damage or disturb their 
habitat or resting place. Please note that this consent does not override 
the statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that 
your proposals could potentially affect a protected species you should 
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and 
consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to commencing 
works. Please see Natural England’s website for further information on 
protected species. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
If soakaways prove to be non-viable and discharge to an ordinary 
watercourse is required: 
 
Wiltshire Council is the land drainage authority under the Land Drainage 
Act 1991. Land drainage consent is required if a development proposes to 

Page 21

mailto:RightsOfWayConsultations@wiltshire.gov.uk


 
 
 

 
 
 

discharge flow into an ordinary watercourse or carry out work within 8m 
of an ordinary watercourse. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
The applicant should note that the grant of planning permission does not 
include any separate permission which may be needed to erect a 
structure in the vicinity of a public sewer. Such permission should be 
sought direct from Thames Water Utilities Ltd / Wessex Water Services 
Ltd. 
 
Buildings are not normally allowed within 3.0 metres of a Public Sewer 
although this may vary depending on the size, depth, strategic 
importance, available access and the ground conditions appertaining to 
the sewer in question. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
Any alterations to the approved plans, brought about by compliance with 
Building Regulations or any other reason must first be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority before commencement of work. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
The applicant is requested to note that this permission does not affect any 
private property rights and therefore does not authorise the carrying out 
of any work on land outside their control. If such works are required it will 
be necessary for the applicant to obtain the landowners consent before 
such works commence. 
 
If you intend carrying out works in the vicinity of the site boundary, you 
are also advised that it may be expedient to seek your own advice with 
regard to the requirements of the Party Wall Act 1996. 
 

20 PL/2022/02824: Land at Somerford Farm, Brinkworth, SN15 5AU 
 
Public Participation 
Cllr Parsons, on behalf of Brinkworth Parish Council, spoke in objection of the 
application. 
 
Officers from the Development Management Area Team introduced the report 
which recommended that the Committee grant planning permission, subject to 
conditions, for full planning permission for a battery storage facility. The 
batteries would be housed within containers which utilise air conditioning units 
for cooling purposes. The facility is supported by ancillary development, 
including  transformers, inverters, and switch gear units. 
 
Key considerations identified included: 
 

a) Whether the proposal is acceptable in principle. 

Page 22



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
b) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of agricultural land. 

 
c) Whether the proposal would be harmful in terms of its landscape and 

visual impact. 
 

d) Whether the scheme would give rise to an adverse impact on residential 
amenity. 

 
e) Whether the proposal would have an adverse impact upon highway 

safety or public rights of way. 
 

f) Whether the scheme would cause harm to protected species and/or their 
habitats. 

 
g) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of trees and ancient 

woodland. 
 

h) Whether the scheme would cause harm to areas of archaeological 
interest or to heritage assets; and 

 
i) Whether the proposal would result in any other adverse environmental 

impacts. 
 
Members of the Committee then had the opportunity to ask technical questions 
to the officer. 
 
It was clarified that the site would connect to the grid via the Minety substation, 
would be below ground, and that planning permission was not required for this 
particular element. Limits on the colours of the containers was set out in 
condition 5, with balance kept between keeping them dark and avoiding any 
risks of overheating. 
 
Members of the public then had the opportunity to present their views to the 
committee as detailed above. 
The unitary division member, Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall then spoke in objection of 
the application. 
 
A debate followed where the Committee considered Wiltshire Council’s Core 
Policy 51 and Core Policy 57, considering the plans to be against these policies 
due to the proximity of the site to the road and the site’s impact on the local 
landscape. 
 
The impact of lighting in and around the site was also considered. 
 
During debate a motion to refuse was proposed by Cllr Elizabeth Threlfall and 
seconded by Cllr Nic Puntis, after which it was: 
 
Resolved 
 

Page 23



 
 
 

 
 
 

That planning permission be refused. 
 

21 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  14.00pm – 18.10pm) 

 
The Officer who has produced these minutes is Max Hirst of Democratic Services, e-

mail max.hirst@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 

Press enquiries to Communications, direct line 01225 713114 or email 
communications@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
 

Page 24

mailto:communications@wiltshire.gov.uk


Wiltshire Council   
Northern Area Planning Committee 

16th April 2024 
 

  Planning Appeals Received between 16/02/2024 and 05/04/2024 
Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL or 

COMM 
Appeal Type Officer 

Recommend 
Appeal 
Start Date 

Overturn 
at Cttee 

PL/2023/05206 Ridgefield Farm, Green 
Road, The Ridge, 
Corsham, Wilts, SN13 
9PW 

Corsham Commercial use of former agricultural 
buildings (Retrospective) 

DEL Written 
Representations 

Refuse 21/03/2024 No 

PL/2023/05793 1 Greenway Avenue, 
Chippenham, SN15 
1AH 

Chippenham Two story extension DEL Householder 
Appeal 
 

Refuse 13/03/2024 No 

PL/2023/08554 24 Doubledays, 
Cricklade, Swindon, 
SN6 6AU 

Cricklade Proposed Side Extensions DEL Householder 
Appeal 
 

Refuse 26/03/2024 No 

PL/2023/08833 Land off Stanton Lane, 
Kington St Michael, 
Chippenham, SN14 
6JQ 

Kington St. 
Michael 

Permission in Principle for Erection of 9 
Houses. 

DEL Written 
Representations 

Refuse 20/02/2024 No 

 
  Planning Appeals Decided between 16/02/2024 and 05/04/2024 

Application No Site Location Parish Proposal DEL 
or 
COMM 

Appeal Type Officer 
Recommend 

Appeal 
Decision 

Decision 
Date 

Costs 
Awarded? 

PL/2021/07966 Euridge Manor Farm 
Euridge, Colerne 
SN14 8BJ 

Colerne Change of use of land and 
buildings to accommodate 
events uses, installation of 10 
camping pods and a tree house 
as accommodation ancillary to 
the events business; associated 
landscaping and engineering 
works - Part Retrospective 

DEL Inquiry Refuse Appeal 
Withdrawn 

21/03/2024 None 

PL/2021/09852 Land to the East of 
Waitrose, A429, 
Malmesbury, Wiltshire 

Malmesbury Self build residential 
development with associated 
infrastructure works, 
landscaping, open space and a r 
relevant purpose), the 
application is for a phased 
development. Phase A 
comprising the construction of 
the infrastructure works, 
landscaping, open space and a 
minor variation of the route of 
footpath MALM19. The 
construction of each self build 
dwelling is an individual phase 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Allowed with 
Conditions 

05/03/2024 None 

  

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



PL/2022/00664 Land off Pond Lane, 
Minety 

Charlton Proposed Development is for a 
battery storage facility. The use 
of the site would change from 
agricultural to energy 
infrastructure. 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Allowed 20/02/2024 Appellant 
applied for 
Costs - 
APPROVED 

PL/2022/01233 35 Chapel Lane, 
Hankerton, 
Malmesbury, SN16 
9LG 

Hankerton Demolition of existing house and 
erection of a replacement 
dwelling 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 28/03/2024 Appellant 
applied for 
Costs - 
REFUSED 

PL/2022/09773 Land adj Rockwell 
Cottage, 8 Sutton 
Lane, Sutton Benger, 
SN15 4RU 

Sutton Benger Erection of 2 No. dwellings with 
detached garages and 
associated ancillary 
development 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 05/04/2024 Appellant 
applied for 
Costs - 
APPROVED 

PL/2022/09856 Land at Notton, 
Corsham Road, 
Lacock, Wilts, SN15 
2NF 

Lacock Permission in Principle for the 
erection of up to 4 no self build 
dwellings 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 20/02/2024 None 
 

PL/2023/02085 The Dairy And 
Parlour, Hornbeam 
Grange, Cricklade, 
SN6 6HZ 

Cricklade Change of Use to provide 2No 
Unrestricted Dwellings (C3), 
Removing the Existing Holiday 
Let Restrictions 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 29/02/2024 None 
 

PL/2023/04942 Land off Thompsons 
Hill, Thompsons Hill, 
Sherston, 
Malmesbury, SN16 
0PZ 

Sherston Stage 1 Permission in Principle 
Application for development of 1 
self-built dwelling. Resubmission 
of PL/2022/03345 

DEL Written Reps Refuse Dismissed 08/03/2024 None 
 

 

P
age 26



 

 

REPORT FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

 

Application Number PL/2022/05412 

Site Address Land off Dog Trap Lane , Minety 

Proposal Proposed Development is for a battery storage facility and 
ancillary infrastructure (Revision of PL/2022/00404) 

Applicant HB222BRI Ltd  

Town/Parish Council Minety 

Electoral Division Minety – Councillor Chuck Berry 

Grid Ref 401684 190197 

Type of application Full Planning Permission 

Case Officer  Adrian Walker  

 

Reason for the application being considered by Committee  
 
The application has been called-in by the Division Member Chuck Berry (Minety Division) (on the 
14 October 2022) for the following reasons - ‘scale of the development’, ‘visual impact upon the 
surrounding area’, ‘relationship to adjoining properties’, and ‘design – bulk, height, general 
appearance’. It was also stated that the proposals is for one of eleven applications for Battery 
Energy Storage Systems in the area so the cumulative impact needs to be considered. This 
current application has new mitigation measures [following the withdrawal of the original 
application] but the culminative impact is not addressed.  

 
1. Purpose of Report 

 
The purpose of the report is to assess the merits of the proposal against the policies of the 
development plan and other material considerations and to consider the recommendation to grant 
planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
2. Report Summary 
 
The main issues for consideration are: 
 

a) Whether the proposal is acceptable in principle; 
b) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of agricultural land; 
c) Whether the proposal would be harmful in terms of its landscape and visual impact; 
d) Whether the scheme would give rise to an adverse impact on residential amenity; 
e) Whether the proposal would have an adverse impact upon highway safety or public rights 

of way; 
f) Whether the scheme would cause harm to protected species and/or their habitats; 
g) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of trees and ancient woodland; 
h) Whether the scheme would cause harm to areas of archaeological interest or to heritage 

assets; and 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 

 

i) Whether the proposal would result in any other adverse environmental impacts. 
 

3. Site Description 
 
The application site is a green field located in open countryside comprising approx.1.85hectares 
surrounded by woodland along its north, east and south boundaries. The site lies to the east of 
Dog Trap Lane and is circa 1.5km to the east of the National Grid Minety Substation and circa 
0.6km south-west of Minety. 
 
Public Footpath MINE1 follows a route along the western edge of the site. The nearest residential 
properties are along Dog Trap Lane to the north-west and south-west of the site as shown on the 
Location Plan below.  
 

 
Site Location Plan (Drawing 3075-01-01 Site Location Plan) 

 
4. Relevant Planning History 
 
The following planning application is material to the assessment of the current proposal:-  
 

 PL/2022/00404 - Change of use from agricultural to energy infrastructure and proposed 
battery storage facility - Land off Dog Trap Lane, Minety – Withdrawn 24 May 2022  

 
There are other current planning applications before the Council for Solar Photovoltaic and 
Battery Energy Storage System developments. They are as listed as follows and identified on the 
map below:-  
 

- PL/2022/02824 - Land at Somerford Farm, Brinkworth, SN15 5AU - Proposed 
Development is for a battery storage facility and ancillary development. (2.6km South East 
of Substation) 
 

Page 28



 

 

- PL/2022/04524 - Land east of Ravensroost Road, Ravenshurst Farm, Minety, 
Malmesbury, SN16 9RJ - Installation of a Battery Energy Storage Facility, substation, 
underground cabling, access, landscaping, biodiversity enhancements and ancillary 
infrastructure & equipment to include acoustic fence, security fence & gates.  (3.4km 
South East of Substation) 
 

- PL/2022/05504 - Land at Stonehill, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16 9DX - Installation of a Battery 
Energy Storage System (BESS) together with associated ancillary infrastructure, 
equipment and access arrangements.  (South West of Substation) 
 

- PL/2022/08634 - Lower Moor, Minety - Solar Park and Energy Storage Facility together 
with associated works, equipment and necessary infrastructure. 
 

- PL/2023/03501 - Land near Minety Substation, Minety, SN16 9DX - Variation of condition 
3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 11 & 20 of 20/03528/FUL -To allow modifications to the approved layout, 
increase from 12 battery units with 16 localised inverters to 22 battery units and 19 
containerised inverters, alterations to location of vehicular access. 
 

- PL/2023/07269 - Land to the east and south of National Grid Minety Substation, Minety, 
Malmesbury, Wiltshire, SN16 9RP - Installation of a grid connection cable route for an 
electrical connection between the approved Minety Battery Storage Facility (Planning 
ref:20/07390/FUL) and National Grid Minety substation. 

 
The following current applications, for an extension to the Minety Substation and another Battery 
Energy Storage System, are also relevant to the assessment of the current proposal and are 
identified on the map above:- 

Page 29



 

 

 
- PL/2022/09258 - Minety Substation, Minety, Wiltshire, SN16 9DX - Extension of existing 

substation comprising installation of 400/132kV transformer, 3no. 400/33kV transformers, 
circuit breakers, construction of retaining wall and 33kV switchroom, formation of access 
road, culverting of watercourse, erection of fencing and associated works.  
 

- PL/2022/00664 - Land off Pond Lane, Minety - Proposed Development is for a battery 
storage facility – Non-Determination Appeal ref APP/Y3940/W/23/3319392. (1.05km South 
East of Substation) 

 
There are also a number of approved applications for Solar Photovoltaic and Battery Energy 
Storage Systems around the Minety Substation, they are listed as follows with some of the key 
ones identified on the plan below:-   
 

- 20/03528/FUL - Installation of a renewable led energy scheme comprising ground 
mounted photovoltaic solar arrays and battery-based electricity storage containers 
together with transformer stations; access; internal access track; landscaping; security 
fencing; security measures; access gate; and ancillary infrastructure - Approved with 
Conditions 20/08/2021 (north / east and west of the substation) 

 

(source: planning application PL/2022/04524 / Conrad Energy (Developments) II Limited / dated 31.10.22) 

Page 30



 

 

 
- Planning Application 17/03936/FUL - Development of a 49.99 MW Battery Storage Facility 

with associated ancillary equipment, providing services to National Grid, formation of 
access track - Approved with Conditions 20/07/2017 (north of the substation) 

 
- Planning Application 17/03941/FUL - Development of a 49.99 MW Battery Storage Facility 

with associated ancillary equipment, providing services to National Grid, formation of 
access track - Approved with Conditions 19/07/2017 (north of the substation) 
 

- Planning Application 17/05526/FUL - Energy Storage System, comprising battery storage 
containers, ancillary buildings, security fencing, CCTV, landscaping and substation - Land 
adjacent to electricity sub station - Approved with Conditions 21/09/2017 (south of the 
substation) 
 

- Planning Application 18/04718/FUL - Energy Storage System, Comprising Battery Storage 
Containers, Ancillary Buildings, Security Fencing, CCTV and Landscaping - Land Adjacent 
to Electricity Sub Station - Approved with Conditions 19/07/2018 (south of the substation) 
 

- Planning Application 19/11460/FUL - Energy Storage System, comprising battery storage 

containers, ancillary buildings, security fencing, CCTV and landscaping - Approved with 

Conditions 06/02/2020 (north-east of the substation) 
 

- Planning Application 20/07390/FUL - Installation of a battery storage facility and ancillary 
development on land adjacent to National Grid's Minety Substation - National Grid Minety 
Substation Approved with Conditions 25/01/2001 (east of the substation)  
 

- Planning Application PL/2021/09101 - Variation of conditions 2 and 10 for application 
17/03941/FUL - Development of a 49.99 MW Battery Storage Facility with associated 
ancillary equipment, providing services to National Grid, formation of access track - 
Approved with Conditions 28/06/2022  

 
- Planning Application PL/2021/04151 - Construction of a 2 hour duration containerised 

Battery Storage Facility with the ability to store and export up to 49.99 MW of electricity. 
The development will comprise 58 single storey steel cabins, known as E - Houses which 
are 12m long, 2.4m wide and 2.9m high, which house banks of lithium-ion batteries. 12 
MV Blocks, also known as the transformers and control gear sit alongside E - Houses. The 
compound is protected with a 2.5 m high steel mesh fence. The proposed development 
would replace the approved Minety North substation (Minety North, 17/03936/FUL) – 
Approved with Conditions 08/11/2021 (north-east of the substation) 

 
There are operational Battery Energy Storage Systems directly to the north-east and south of the 
Minety Substation with other solar photovoltaic development within the wider landscape.  
 
Environmental Impact Assessment 
 
On the 14 September 2021, Pelagic Energy requested a Screening Opinion from Wiltshire 
Council, under Regulation 6(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017 (as amended), for the installation a 47.5MW battery storage 

facility and associated infrastructure on land described as ‘Land off Dog Trap Lane, Minety, 
Wiltshire’ (PL/2021/08850). The area of land was 3.4hecatres but included the land the subject of 
this current planning application. The purpose of the request was to determine whether the 

Page 31



 

 

proposed development, as described, would be likely to have significant effects on the 
environment and therefore require an assessment.   
 
The Council issued a Screening Opinion (ref PL/2021/08850) on the 06 October 2021 confirming 
that “based on the information provided, it is the opinion of the local planning authority that the 
proposed development would not result in effects the significance of which would require an 
environmental impact assessment. An environmental impact assessment is not required for this 
proposal”. 
 
On the 19 May 2023, Pelagic Energy requested a Screening Opinion from the Secretary of State, 
under Regulation 6(10) of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) 
Regulations 2017 (as amended), for the development the subject of this planning application. The 
Department for Levelling Up, Housing & Communities confirmed on the 22 November 2023 that 
“having taken into account the selection criteria in Schedule 3 to the 2017 Regulations the 
Secretary of State does not consider that the proposal is likely to have significant effects on the 
environment” and provided a full written statement which gives the reasons for the direction as 
required by Regulation 5(6) of the EIA Regulations. 
 
It was concluded that “Overall, based on the available information and having regard to the 
considerable amount of permitted energy development in the locality, the Secretary of State has 
concluded there are no other issues or factors in this case, in this specific location, that either in 
isolation, or cumulatively, indicate a likelihood of there being significant environmental effects from 
this proposal. EIA is therefore not required”. 
 
5. The Proposal 

 
The application seeks full planning permission for a Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) with 
a capacity of c.50MW. The batteries would be housed within containers and be supported by 
ancillary development, including transformers, inverters, and switch gear units. The site would 
also be surrounded by a security fencing, acoustic fencing, and new landscaping and biodiversity 
enhancements.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

General Arrangement Plan (drawing ref. 3075-01-03 Rev.B) 

Page 32



 

 

 
The Planning, Design & Access Statement (July 2022) by axis provides a detailed description of 
the development and lists the individual items of infrastructure to be installed:-  

 26 no. single stacked containers housing Battery Energy Storage Systems (‘BESS’). 
These would have the appearance of a standard 40ft metal shipping container with 
ventilation units for cooling and would be arranged in blocks within a single compound on 
the Site. 

 The containers would be supported by ancillary infrastructure including: 14 no. Inverter / 
Transformer stations, 2 no. Auxiliary Transformers, 1 no. HV Switchgear, and 1 no. LV 
Switchgear. 

 The containers and ancillary infrastructure would be located within a secure compound 
surrounded by a 2.4m high weldmesh fence with CCTV security cameras. 

 A 4m high Acoustic Fence would sit along the north side of the BSF compound 
 A 5m high Acoustic Fence would sit along the west side of the BSF compound. 
 A new access track, connecting the proposed BSF compound with Dog Trap Lane to the 

west. 
 New landscaping across the Site, including tree, shrub and hedgerow planting, and an 

attenuation pond. 
 The Proposed Development would gain access from Dog Trap Lane to the west of the Site 

and a new dedicated access track would run along the southern field boundary to the 
BESS compound. 

 
The Planning, Design & Access Statement explains that the purpose of the development is to 
store power from the national grid at times of excess supply and would feed this power back into 
the grid at times of high demand/reduced generation capacity. The type of development is 
referred to by National Grid as a ‘balancing service’. It would assist in balancing grid frequency at 
times of system stress associated with periods of over or under supply. 
 
The application explains that the point of connection for the proposed development to the 
electricity grid would be at the existing Minety Substation, which is located circa 1.5km west of the 
Site. The connection would be installed below ground by an ICP contractor / statutory undertaker 
under permitted development rights. Accordingly, planning permission is not being sought for this 
element of the scheme. 
 
The application is supported by the following plans and documents: - 
 

 Document. Planning Design and Access Statement (July 2022) by axis and the following 
Appendices: 

- Wiltshire Council EIA Screening Opinion; 
- Ecological Assessment; 
- Flood Risk / Surface Water Drainage Assessment; 
- Arboricultural Impact Assessment (including Tree Survey, Tree Protection Plan and 

Arboricultural Method Statement); 
- Noise Impact Assessment; 
- Heritage Statement and Geophysical Survey; 
- Landscape and Visual Appraisal; 
- Transport Statement; and 
- Agricultural Land Classification Survey. 

 
 Drawing. 3075-01-01 Rev B Site Location Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-02 Rev B Statutory Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-03 Rev B General Arrangement 
 Drawing. 3075-01-04 Battery Storage Container 

Page 33



 

 

 Drawing. 3075-01-05 Inverter-Transformer Stations 
 Drawing. 3075-01-06 Transformer 
 Drawing. 3075-01-07 Switchgear Container 
 Drawing. 3075-01-08 LV Switchgear Container 
 Drawing. 3075-01-09 Fencing and Security 
 Drawing. 3075-01-10 Rev B Existing Site Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-11 Site Access Arrangements 
 Drawing. 3075-01-12 Landscape Design 

 
6. Planning Policy 
 
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)  
 
Wiltshire Core Strategy 2006 – 2026, with particular regard to: 
 

 Core Policy 42 Standalone Renewable Energy Installations 
 Core Policy 50 Biodiversity and Geodiversity; 
 Core Policy 51 Landscape 
 Core Policy 52 Green Infrastructure 
 Core Policy 57 Ensuring High Quality Design and Place Shaping; 
 Core Policy 58 Ensuring the Conservation of the Historic Environment; 
 Core Policy 60 Sustainable Transport 
 Core Policy 61 Transport & Development 
 Core Policy 62 Development impacts on the transport network 
 Core Policy 67 Flood Risk; 

 
North Wiltshire Local Plan 2011 (Saved Policies) 

 Policy NE12 Woodland (saved North Wiltshire Local Plan policy); 
 Policy NE14 Trees and the control of new development (saved North Wiltshire Local 

Plan policy); 
 Policy NE18 Noise and pollution (saved North Wiltshire Local Plan policy). 

 
Planning Practice Guidance for Renewable and Low Carbon Energy (published 
18 June 2015 / updated 14 August 2023). 
 
Government policy for delivery of major energy infrastructure:- 

 Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy (EN-1) 
 National Policy Statement for Renewable Energy Infrastructure (EN-3)  
 National Policy Statement for the Electricity Networks Infrastructure (EN-5) 

 
7. Consultations 
 
The application has been subject to formal consultation and publicity. The most recent response 
from each consultee is summarised below:  
 
Environment Agency – No observations. 
 
Natural England – No observations.  
 
National Grid – No observations 
 
Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service – Standard advice provided.  
 

Page 34



 

 

Council Archaeology – No objection, no further archaeological investigation works required.  
 
Council Conservation Officer – No objection.  
 
Council Highways Department – No objection, subject to the conditions to secure a 
Construction Management Statement, a photographic pre-condition highway survey, and for the 
access arrangements to be safely laid out.  
 
Council Rights of Way Officer – No objection but standard advice and guidance provided in 
relation to the need to seek approval from the Rights of Way team Countryside Access Officer 
from any works affecting the public footath that crosses the site.  
 
Council Ecologist – No objection subject to conditions regarding CEMP, LEMP, Lighting and 
decommissioning. 
 
Council Landscape Officer – No objection subject to conditions regarding the colour of the 
infrastructure to be installed, requiring the implementation of the landscape design scheme, and 
the submission and approval of a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP) to ensure 
the establishment and long term management of the mitigation / planting scheme.   
 
Council Arboricultural Officer – No objection, subject to conditions to secure the 
implementation of the Arboricultural Method Statement (including an update to protect T23 Oak) 
and further details in relation to the construction of the access track.  
 
Council Drainage Officer – No objection, subject to a condition to secure full details of the 
proposed surface water drainage scheme.  
 
Council Public Protection Officer – No objection, subject to conditions to secure noise 
mitigation measures, the control the construction hours, and required a land contamination 
remediation scheme if required.    
 
Minety Parish Council – No observations.  
 
8. Publicity 
 
As a result of publicity, 8 representations have been received from local people all objecting to the 
proposed development on the application site for the following reasons:-  
 

- The background of the company and its credibility is questioned.  
- The existing Battery Energy Storage Schemes in the area are unsightly and noisy. 
- The development will result in the unnecessary loss of greenfield land. 
- The development should be on brownfield land. 
- Dog Trap Lane is quiet and peaceful, day and night. The proposal is completely out of 

character for this rural location. 
- If this facility was located a lot closer to the area of transmission/generation it would be 

much better all round. 
- The development is industrial in nature and completely out of keeping with the 

location. 
- The land has always been used for agriculture and is a habitat for wild life which will be 

severely compromise. 
- There are a number of other proposals for Battery Storage Facilities/Solar Farms, in 

and around Minety, the combined noise levels will be even more intrusive, not only to 
the residents of Dog Trap Lane but to the whole of the area. 

Page 35



 

 

- Noise pollution, fire risks, flooding, and the entrance on a blind bend are all issues. 
 

9. Planning Considerations 
 
a) Whether the proposal is acceptable in principle  
 
The Infrastructure Planning (Electricity Storage Facilities) Order 2020 removed all forms of 
electricity storage, other than pumped hydroelectric storage, from the definition of nationally 
significant energy generating stations under the Planning Act 2008. As such, any proposal for a 
Battery Energy Storage System must be determined by Local Planning Authorities. 
 
Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in accordance with 
the development plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning policies and 
decisions must also reflect relevant international obligations and statutory requirements (NPPF, 
par 2). For the purpose of determining this application, the development plan comprises the 
Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted January 2015) and the Saved Policies of the former North 
Wiltshire Local Plan (2011). A core objective of the development plan is to address climate 
change and through Core Policy 42 ‘Standalone Renewable Energy Installations’, the Council 
sets out the parameters within which standalone renewable energy installations, which would 
equally apply to supporting infrastructure, shall be supported. 
 
The NPPF advises that Local Planning Authorities should take a proactive approach to mitigating 
and adapting to climate change and to help increase the use and supply of renewable and low 
carbon energy and heat, plans should provide a positive strategy for energy from these sources 
(par 160). Battery Storage Facilities are a form of infrastructure that support the use and supply of 
renewable energy. The Planning Practice Guidance advises that “Electricity storage can enable 
us to use energy more flexibly and de-carbonise our energy system cost-effectively – for example, 
by helping to balance the system at lower cost, maximising the usable output from intermittent low 
carbon generation (e.g. solar and wind), and deferring or avoiding the need for costly network 
upgrades and new generation capacity” (Paragraph: 032 Reference ID: 5-032-20230814).  
 
The Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy advises that energy storage has a key role 
to play in achieving net zero and providing flexibility to the energy system. Storage is needed to 
reduce the costs of the electricity system and increase reliability by storing surplus electricity in 
times of low demand to provide electricity when demand is higher. Storage can provide various 
services, locally and at the national level. These include maximising the usable output from 
intermittent low carbon generation (e.g. solar and wind), reducing the total amount of generation 
capacity needed on the system; providing a range of balancing services to the National Electricity 
Transmission System Operator (NETSO) and Distribution Network Operators (DNOs) to help 
operate the system; and reducing constraints on the networks, helping to defer or avoid the need 
for costly network upgrades as demand increases (par 3.3.25 – 3.3.27).  
 
Locally, Wiltshire Council has made a firm commitment to seek to make the county of Wiltshire 
carbon neutral by 2030 and has pledged as an organisation to become carbon neutral by 2030. 
The Council's Climate Strategy (2022 – 2027) sets out a clear commitment to increase the uptake 
of renewable energy, it states the Council seek to “Increase renewable electricity  generation 
including microgeneration (and associated technologies such as storage) in Wiltshire by working 
in  partnership with others” (p28).  
 
The Council's Climate Strategy explains that “At present the grid supplies energy on demand. 
Once transport and heating are electrified, there will be a much greater demand. In order to 
manage this a flexible and ‘smart’ grid will be needed. The UK Net Zero Strategy sets a high level 

Page 36



 

 

of ambition, stating that all electricity will come from low carbon sources by 2035, subject to 
security of supply, whilst meeting a 40-60% increase in demand’” (p28). 
 
The planning application explains that the applicant, HB222BRI Ltd, is a subsidiary of Pelagic 
Energy, a developer of flexible generation and energy storage projects, such as battery storage 
and solar energy, in the UK. The company has secured number of development opportunities 
near to National Grid’s Super Grid Transformer Substations across the UK. These substations are 
strategically important infrastructure, required to maintain power supplies across the UK. Locating 
BESSs within a reasonable distance to Super Grid Transformer Substations, ensures rapid 
responses to transmission grid instability and that transmission losses are minimised through the 
associated grid connection. 
 
The Planning, Design & Access Statement explains that the development would store power from 
the national grid at times of excess supply and would feed this power back into the grid at times of 
high demand/reduced generation capacity. It would provide a flexible back-up power source to the 
grid and can respond rapidly to variations that result from local and national energy demand, 
alongside increasing fluctuations in generation resulting from an ever-greater use of intermittent 
renewable energy sources. Accordingly, the proposal would ensure that curtailment of renewable 
energy generation at times or high supply and low demand is reduced and that the contribution of 
renewable energy to the network is maximised (par 1.24 – 1.25). 
 
The proposal therefore aligns with the Government’s objective to strengthen the electricity 
network and enable energy to be used more flexibly. The proposed development is therefore 
considered to be acceptable in principle in terms of the type of development. However, in order to 
establish the acceptability of the proposal on the site in question, all material planning 
considerations associated with the proposal must be considered, and are discussed within the 
following sections.  
 
In terms of the proposed location of the battery storage facility, the Planning Inspectorate has 
highlighted that “Locational factors that influence the siting of battery storage facilities include, 
provision of access to unrestricted network capacity, proximity to a financially viable access to the 
national grid and point of connection, availability of suitable land and the proximity of a point of 
access to the highway network” (appeal ref 3289603, par 30). The application provides details of 
the site selection process, the Planning, Design & Access Statement explains that Pelagic Energy 
have carried out a site screening exercise for National Grid’s Super Grid Transformer Substations. 
A significant number of these substations are constrained due to the close proximity of housing or 
other environmental constraints. As such, there are only a limited number of substations suitable 
for BESS projects to connect to. 
 
The justification provided for the site selection process highlights the need for the battery storage 
facility to be within close proximity to the National Grid Minety Substation, away from neighbouring 
properties, and within an area that is not protected by any national or local landscape or 
ecological designations.  
 
The application site is however approximately 1.5km away from the substation within the open 
countryside therefore the specific impacts of the proposal and thus the acceptability of the 
development are considered in the following sections. 
 
b) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of agricultural land  
 
The NPPF requires planning policies and decisions to contribute to and enhance the natural and 
local environment by “…recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the 
wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including the economic and other 

Page 37



 

 

benefits of the best and most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland, and of trees 
and woodland” (paragraph 180). 
 
Natural England’s Technical Information Note TIN049 ‘Agricultural Land Classification: protecting 
the best and most versatile agricultural land’ explains that: “the Agricultural Land Classification 
(ALC) provides a method for assessing the quality of farmland to enable informed choices to be 
made about its future use within the planning system… The ALC system classifies land into five 
grades, with Grade 3 subdivided into Subgrades 3a and 3b. The best and most versatile land is 
defined as Grades 1, 2 and 3a by policy guidance (see Annex 2 of NPPF)”.  
 
The site comprises Grade 3b agricultural land which is confirmed within the Agricultural Land 
Classification and Soils Resources report (June 2022) by Reading Agricultural Consultants. The 
site does not therefore include the ‘best and most versatile agricultural land’. The development will 
also not result in the loss of a ‘significant’ amount of agricultural land due to the site area. There is 
therefore no conflict with planning policy in this regard and the need for the facility against the loss 
of the small area of agricultural land will need to be considered within the overall planning 
balance.   
 
c) Whether the proposal would be harmful in terms of its landscape and visual impact; 
 
The NPPF advises that planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and local environment (par 180) and Core Policy 51 ‘Landscape’ of the WCS outlines that 
new development should protect, conserve and where possible enhance landscape character and 
must not have a harmful impact upon landscape character, while any negative impacts must be 
mitigated as far as possible through sensitive design and landscape measures. Proposals should 
be informed by and sympathetic to the distinctive character areas identified in the relevant 
Landscape Character Assessment(s) and any other relevant assessments and studies.  
 
The application site does not lie within a designated or protected landscape and the application is 
supported by a Landscape and Visual Appraisal (June 2022) by axis which refers to the relevant 
character area (Upper Thames Clay Vales) and provides an assessment of whether a likely 
significant landscape and visual effect would be experienced by any receptor, by considering the 
predicted magnitude of change together with the sensitivity of the receptor, taking into account 
any proposed mitigation measures. 
 
The Landscape and Visual Appraisal report explains that the proposed landscape proposals form 
an intrinsic component of the proposed development. They would include new native planting 
between the new structures and the public footpath that crosses the site. This would increase tree 
cover within the site, enhance biodiversity, and screen views from the footpath. New species-rich 
grassland areas would also enhance biodiversity. The report concludes by stating that the 
proposed new structures would be barely visible from beyond the Site boundary and would have 
no appreciable influence upon the wider landscape or views across it. As landscape and visual 
effects would not be significant, no further mitigation measures are proposed. However, it is 
recognised that the report refers to a proposed area for planting a 'Jubilee Woodland’ with 
permissive access to the west of the site (which is said to be funded by Minety Parish Council, 
subject to planning permission for the proposed development.  
 
The Council’s Landscape Officer highlights that “there are two PRoW that pass near or across the 
site (MINE 1/2) which is otherwise well screened by the adjacent woodland to all but views from 
the South West. I am pleased to note on the general arrangement plan that a substantial amount 
of tree and shrub planting is proposed to help screen these views as well”. The Officer draws 
attention to the potential for cumulative visual impacts with other projects, which is discussed 
further below, but advises there are “no landscape objections to the scheme going ahead 

Page 38



 

 

provided that a detailed planting plan setting out species specification and densities are 
conditioned along with a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan”. It was also recommended 
that colour of all structures including containers, fencing, CCTV, and gates be painted either black 
or dark green to blend in better with the surrounding landscape. 
 
In light of the above, it is evident that the proposed development would result in a significant 
change in the land use which would be industrial in nature and not characteristic of the rural area. 
However, the impact on landscape character would be well contained and localised and be well 
contained in both scale and extent, and would be mitigated as far as possible through landscape 
measures in line with Core Policy 51.  
 
d)  Whether the scheme would give rise to an adverse impact on residential amenity  
 
The NPPF advises that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the 
natural and  local environment by preventing new and existing development from contributing to, 
being put at  unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, 
air, water or noise pollution or land instability (par 180). This aim is also reflected within Core 
Policy 57 ‘Ensuring High Quality Desing and Place Shaping’ of the WCS seeks to secure a high 
standard of design in all new development with one key element being the need for consideration 
be given to the compatibility with adjoining land uses and the impact on the amenities of existing 
occupants as a result of noise or air pollution etc.  
 
The application is supported by a Noise Assessment (May 2022) by Noise Vibration Consultants 
Ltd which considers the potential noise from the proposed development at nearest sensitive 
receptors and offers advice (where appropriate) on any additional noise mitigation measures to 
meet planning guidance and noise standards. The assessment shows that with appropriate 
mitigation the proposed development can be designed to comply with relevant noise guidance 
and standards. The following mitigation measurer are proposed:-  

a. Transformers (step-up and auxiliary) design noise level 65dB LAeq15mins at 1m. 
b. Battery Storage containers with any associated cooling system designed to a noise level 

not exceeding 64dB LAeq15mins @ 1m (external to container). 
c. Inverter plant mounted within an open sided container designed to a noise level not 

exceeding 64dB LAeq15mins @ 1m. 
d. Switchgear container designed to limit noise to 65dB LAeq15mins @ 1m. 
e. Site plant compound south-western and north-western boundary would be fitted with a 

combination of 4m and 5m high acoustic screening (minimum mass of 15kg/m2 for 4m 
high and 20kg/m2 for 5m high).  

 
The Council’s Public Protection Officer is satisfied with the mitigation proposed and advised that 
the nearest residential receptors would not be subject to adverse noise impacts from the proposal.  
 
It is recognised that there may be some disturbance created during the construction phase, 
however the site is remote enough that impacts due to noise and dust from its construction is 
unlikely to significantly impact on local residents. It is however recommended that a Construction 
and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) be submitted and approved via condition, which 
would also control the construction hours as requested by the Council’s Public Protection Officer.  
 
On this basis, it is considered that the proposed development will not conflict with the relevant 
policies of the plan, including Core Policy 57 of the WCS, or with relevant provisions of the NPPF. 
 
e) Whether the proposal would have an adverse impact upon highway safety or public 

rights of way  
 

Page 39



 

 

The NPPF advises that transport issues should be considered from the earliest stages of plan-
making and development proposals but ultimately it advises that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe (par 115). Core 
Policy 62 ‘Development Impacts on the Transport Network’ however advises that developments 
should provide appropriate mitigating measures to offset any adverse impacts on the transport 
network at both the construction and operational stages. 
 
The application is supported by a Transport Statement (June 2022) by axis which provides details 
of the proposed access arrangement, considers the vehicular movements associated with the 
construction and operational phases of the development, including vehicle routing to the site from 
the primary road network.  
 
The Transport Statement explains that during both the construction and operational phases, 
access to the site would be achieved via a new dedicated access track, connecting to Dog Trap 
Lane at the south-western corner of the site. The site access will be located approximately 20m 
north of the location of the existing field gate access. The Highway Authority is satisfied that the 
general form of the access is considered to be acceptable, however, it is recommended that the 
first 20m of the access track would need to be of a bound and compacted surface to ensure loose 
material is not tracked out onto the public highway. 
 
In relation to the Construction Phase, the Highway Authority advises that a Construction 
Management Plan will be required as a condition of any approval which would need to 
demonstrate how the construction process will be managed, in respect of accommodating the 
number and frequency of deliveries, materials storage, contractor parking and HGV vehicle 
manoeuvring, in order to ensure such requirements are contained wholly within the site. The 
application presents information on trip generation upfront as part of the Transport Statement 
which forecasts that the maximum number of HGV deliveries during the construction period would 
be 18 two-way movements per day, or 2 HGVs per hour, on average. HGV movements outside of 
this time would be less frequent. The Highway Authority acknowledges the anticipated type and 
frequency of vehicular movements along the route of Dog Trap Lane, however it is stated that the 
carriageway widths are largely appropriate to accommodate the additional movements anticipated 
over this relatively short construction period. 
 
The Public Right of Way will remain open, accessible and unobstructed throughout the full 
duration of the construction and operational phases of the proposed development. The Council’s 
Public Rights of Way Officer has however drawn attention to the fact that there may need to be a  
temporary closure of the footpath during the construction of the track which should be constructed 
at the same level as the footpath so pedestrians do not need to step up or down onto it. It was 
also advised that the proposed tree and shrub planting adjacent to the footpath should be set 
back at least 2 metres from the centre of the path and be regularly cut back to prevent overgrowth 
onto the path. 
 
In light of the above, while the construction phase will result in a noticeable increase in vehicular 
movements on the local road network, it will be temporary in nature and road network is sufficient 
to accommodate the anticipate volume of movements. As such, subject to the management of the 
construction phase via appropriate conditions, and the full installation of the proposed access 
arrangements, the proposal would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on highway safety 
and would not conflict with national or local transportation policies.  
 
f) Whether the scheme would cause harm to protected species and/or their habitats 
 

Page 40



 

 

Core Policy 50 ‘Biodiversity & Geodiversity’ of the WCS requires all development proposals to 
incorporate appropriate measures to avoid and reduce disturbance to sensitive wildlife species 
and habitats throughout the lifetime of the development. The application is therefore supported by 
an Ecological Assessment (July 2022) by avian ecology which confirms the site does not form 
part of any statutory or non-statutory designated site for nature conservation, and the grassland 
on site has limited ecological value and is not considered functional habitat for any nearby 
designated site, including those designated for species-rich grassland habitats. 
 
The Council’s Ecologist notes that the Local Planning Authority must be reasonably sure that the 
proposal will not result in significant adverse effects on protected habitats or species but does not 
have sufficient information to confirm this would be the case. The submitted Ecological 
Assessment does however form part of the application and considers the ecological impacts of 
the development in detail. It also provides a number of mitigation and enhancement measures to 
ensure no net loss to biodiversity, and would deliver and overall significant enhancement to 
biodiversity net gain.  
 
The Ecological Assessment states that a number of statutory and non-statutory sites within the 
study area are designated for woodland habitats and species utilising these may also rely on 
other nearby fragments of mature woodland, including the Brownockhill Plantation bordering the 
site. However, appropriate buffers will be implemented from the woodland habitats ensuring no 
adverse effects to these habitats. The assessment concludes by stating that due to the low value 
grassland on site, protection measures for the woodland, and distance to any statutory or non-
statutory designated site it is considered the development will not impact on any designated sites 
or their functional habitats either directly or indirectly (par 4.2.4 – 4.2.5).  
 
Core Policy 50 seeks to secure ecological enhancement / Biodiversity Net Gain (BNG) for ‘major’ 
developments only. The proposed development will however result in significant BNG as outlined 
within the Ecological Assessment. It states that the development would result in measurable net 
gains of +108.08% for area derived units and +42.10% for linear derived units. Baseline habitats 
were of low distinctiveness, and while there is an overall loss in the area of semi-natural habitats, 
the proposed development will create higher quality habitats, including species rich grassland, 
woodland and ponds (par 4.4.10). These are shown on the Landscape Design drawing (no. 3075-
01-12) and can therefore be conditioned to ensure they are delivered. Conditions can also secure 
a Construction Ecological Management Plan to prevent disturbance during the construction period 
and a full lighting scheme to limit impacts (on bats in particular) as detailed within the Ecological 
Assessment. The BNG will be well in excess of the national 10% requirement that will become 
mandatory later this year. The proposed development will therefore comply with the requirements 
of Core Policy 51 of the WCS.  
 
g) Whether the proposal would result in the loss of trees and ancient woodland 
 
Core Policies 51, 52 and 57(i & ii) of the WCS require development proposals to conserve and 
enhance natural features including trees, hedges and woodland.  Saved Policy NE12 of the North 
Wiltshire Local Plan supports the creation, conservation, enhancement and positive management 
of woodland.  It also seeks to protect areas of ancient and semi-natural woodland.  Saved Policy 
NE14 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan seeks to prevent the loss of trees, hedges and other 
important landscape or ecological features that could be successfully and appropriately 
incorporated into the design of a development. 
 
The site lies adjacent to a large mixed woodland to the north and east of the site and a scrubland 
area of smaller trees to the south. The application is therefore supported by a Tree Survey Report 
(including Tree Constraints Plan), Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection 
Plan (TPP) by ARBTECH (October 2021). There are no trees within the site and only 1no. partial 

Page 41



 

 

hedgerow requires removal to accommodate the proposed development (i.e. new access point on 
to Dog Trap Lane), however the AMS explains that there are a number of issues that need to be 
addressed in an arboricultural impact assessment between the trees and the proposed 
development, these are as follows: 

 The effect and extent of the proposed development within the root protection areas (RPAs) 
of retained trees; 

 The potential conflicts of the proposed development with canopies of retained trees; and 
 The likelihood of any future remedial works to retained trees beyond which would have 

been scheduled as a part of usual management. 
 
The TPP shows that fence will be installed to protect existing trees during the construction phase 
and only one small area of works (the edge of the surface water attenuation pond) would 
encroach into the root protection area of the trees to be retained.  The reports outline a series of 
mitigation measures and safe working practices to ensure no damage to the trees adjacent to the 
site. 
 
The Council’s Arboricultural Officer has no objection to the proposed development but has 
queried the need to remove 13 metres of hedgerow (which is required for the site access), and for 
T23 Oak to be protected by fencing during the construction works. T23 is however within a 
Construction Exclusion Zone but can be conditioned. The Officer also asked for further details 
regarding the construction method of the access road which can be secured via condition. It is 
critical to understand the extent of earthworks associated with the development to ensure no 
adverse impact on trees to be retained.  
 
In light of the above, the overall quality and longevity of the amenity contribution provided for by 
the trees and groups of trees to the north, east and south of the site would not be adversely 
affected by the proposed development. The scheme involves significant new planting that will 
soften and screen the development. The proposal will have a negligible impact on existing trees 
and ancient woodland and therefore accords with Core Policies 51, 52 & 57 of the WCS and 
Saved Policies NE12 and NE14 of the North Wiltshire Local Plan. 
 
h) Whether the scheme would cause harm to areas of archaeological interest or to 

heritage assets 
 
Core Policies 57(i & iv) and 58 of the WCS deal with conservation of the historic environment.  
The supporting text states that heritage assets include listed buildings, conservation areas, 
scheduled ancient monuments, registered parks and gardens, registered battlefields, world 
heritage sites, and non-designated heritage assets such as buildings and archaeological sites of 
regional and local interest (paragraph 6.136). The policy seeks to ensure that developments 
protect, conserve and where possible enhance the historic environment. Designated heritage 
assets and their settings are to be conserved, and where appropriate enhanced in a manner 
appropriate to their significance. 
 
There are no designated heritage assets within close proximity of the site that have the potential 
to be impacted by the proposed development. The application is however supported by a Heritage 
Impact Assessment (June 2022) by AOC Archaeology Group which acknowledges there are two 
designated heritage assets within 1km of the site (Grade II Listed milestone and Grade II Listed 
19th century Minety House) but rules any potential for harm as they development will not be within 
their immediate setting.  
 
The Heritage Impact Assessment considers the potential impact on below ground heritage assets 
in detail following the request of the County Archaeologist. The County Archaeologist has 
considered the Heritage Statement and the results of the geophysical survey an is satisfied that 

Page 42



 

 

sufficient information has been provided to characterise the archaeological potential of the 
application area and that no further form of archaeological mitigation is necessary. 
 
The development is not therefore anticipated to harm any designated or non-designated heritage 
assets and complies with will Core Policies 57 & 58 of the WCS. 
 
i)  Whether the development would result in any other adverse environmental impacts 
 
Core Policy 67 ‘Flood Risk’ of the WCS requires all new development to include measures to 
reduce the rate of rainwater run-off and improve rainwater infiltration to the soil and ground 
(sustainable drainage system) unless site or environmental conditions make these measures 
unsuitable.  
 
The application is supported by Flood Risk & Water Drainage Assessment (June 2022) by KRS 
Environmental which considers the potential flood risk and presents a surface water drainage 
scheme. It concludes by stating “the Site would be expected to remain dry in all but the most 
extreme conditions. The consequences of flooding are acceptable, and the development would be 
in accordance with the requirements of the NPPF. The Proposed Development would be operated 
with minimal risk from flooding, would not increase flood risk elsewhere and is compliant with the 
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF). The Proposed Development will 
considerably reduce the flood risk posed to the Site and to off-Site locations due to the adoption of 
a Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS) Strategy”. 
 
The Lead Local Flood Authority has no objection in principle to the development, however full and 
final details of the proposed surface water drainage scheme have been requested prior to the 
commencement of the development. The Lead Local Flood Authority is satisfied that due to the 
nature of the development and site area it will be feasible to install a surface water drainage 
scheme which could be secured via condition. This would ensure that a suitable drainage scheme 
is designed and implemented in accordance with Core Policy 67 of the Wiltshire Core Strategy. 
 
The Council’s Public Protection Officer has identified the site has an area of potential 
contamination (unknown filled ground), therefore a condition is recommended to ensure any 
contamination found is adequately dealt with during the construction phase.  
 
Dorset & Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service (DWFRS) advises that they would not object in 
principle to the lawful development of a Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) or other 
alternative energy site it is recognised that these installations pose some specific hazards in the 
event of fire. Any fire involving grid scale Li-ion battery storage would be treated as a hazardous 
materials incident in order that specialist technical advice can be obtained at the earliest 
opportunity. 
 
DWFR further advises that current fire safety legislation (in particular, the Regulatory Reform (Fire 
Safety) Order 2005) is limited in its application to such developments due to the low life risk during 
normal occupation. Process fire risk is generally regulated by the Health and Safety Executive but 
in the absence of regulation under the Control of Major Accident Hazards Regulations (COMAH) 
there is an expectation that fire and rescue services will initiate an emergency response in the 
event of an incident, in conjunction with the site operator’s own plans. 
 
It is advised that research is ongoing to determine the most suitable method to extinguish a fire 
within Li-ion battery cells although current guidance recommends copious (and significant) 
volumes of water for a prolonged period. As such, DWFRS provide a series of recommendations 
to limit the potential for fire and to ensure emergency plans are as robust as possible. The full 
letter from DWFRS will be appended to any planning permission that may be granted along with 

Page 43



 

 

guidance produced by the National Fire Chiefs Council, as referred to within the Planning practice 
Guidance on Battery Energy Storage Systems (Paragraph: 034 Reference ID: 5-034-20230814). 
 
j) Whether the development would have an adverse cumulative impact 
 
The cumulative impact of the proposed development was first considered as part of the EIA 
screening opinion. The Secretary of State concluded that “Given the lack of intervisibility to other 
sites and relatively small and heavily screened nature of this proposal, significant adverse effect in 
this regard is unlikely for the various similar facilities in the locality”. As such, the impacts of the 
development in cumulation with other existing development and/or approved development did not 
justify the need for an EIA. 
 
The need to consider cumulative effects in planning and decision making is set out in planning 
policy. The Overarching National Policy Statement for Energy advises that for nationally 
significant infrastructure project (NSIP) developments “the considering any proposed 
development, in particular when weighing its adverse impacts against its benefits, the Secretary of 
State should take into account: 

 its potential benefits including its contribution to meeting the need for energy infrastructure, 
job creation, reduction of geographical disparities, environmental enhancements, and any 
long-term or wider benefits 

 its potential adverse impacts, including on the environment, and including any long-term 
and cumulative adverse impacts, as well as any measures to avoid, reduce, mitigate or 
compensate for any adverse impacts, following the mitigation hierarchy” (emphasis added) 
(par 4.1.5).  

 
The material planning considerations would equally apply to any BESS development below 50MW 
considered by Local Planning Authorities, including any cumulative adverse impacts which would 
need to be considered within the overall planning balance. The NPPF advises that to help 
increase the use and supply of and supply of renewable and low carbon energy and heat, plans 
should “provide a positive strategy for energy from these sources, that maximises the potential for 
suitable development, and their future re-powering and life extension, while ensuring that adverse 
impacts are addressed appropriately (including cumulative landscape and visual impacts)” 
(emphasis added) (par 160). The WCS requires development considered under Core Policy 47 to 
assess cumulative effects.    
 
The Planning Practice Guidance advises that “The approach to assessing cumulative landscape 
and visual impact of large scale solar farms is likely to be the same as assessing the impact of 
wind turbines. However, in the case of ground-mounted solar panels it should be noted that with 
effective screening and appropriate land topography the area of a zone of visual influence could 
be zero” (Paragraph: 013 Reference ID: 5-013-20150327). 
 
The relevant guidance (Paragraphs: 022 Reference ID: 5-022-20140306 & 023 Reference ID: 5-
023-20140306) advises that the cumulative landscape impacts and cumulative visual impacts are 
best considered separately. The considerations are as follows:-  
  

- Cumulative landscape impacts are the effects of a proposed development on the fabric, 
character and quality of the landscape; it is concerned with the degree to which a 
proposed renewable energy development will become a significant or defining 
characteristic of the landscape. 
 
In identifying impacts on landscape, considerations include: direct and indirect effects, 
cumulative impacts and temporary and permanent impacts. When assessing the 

Page 44



 

 

significance of impacts a number of criteria should be considered including the sensitivity 
of the landscape and visual resource and the magnitude or size of the predicted change 
 

- Cumulative visual impacts concern the degree to which proposed renewable energy 
development will become a feature in particular views (or sequences of views), and the 
impact this has upon the people experiencing those views. Cumulative visual impacts may 
arise where two or more of the same type of renewable energy development will be visible 
from the same point, or will be visible shortly after each other along the same journey. 
Hence, it should not be assumed that, just because no other sites will be visible from the 
proposed development site, the proposal will not create any cumulative impacts 
 
In assessing the impact on visual amenity, factors to consider include: establishing the 
area in which a proposed development may be visible, identifying key viewpoints, the 
people who experience the views and the nature of the views. 

 
The Council’s Landscape Officer is of the opinion that the series of individual planning 
applications seeking planning permission for BESSs is harmfully changing the existing rural 
character of pastoral farmland into an industrialising urban sprawl radiating outwards from Minety 
Substation. The Officer explains that “The National Grid’s Minety Substation site (currently) 
remains a well screened and integrated element of National Grid Infrastructure within this local 
area. Obviously, the overhead electricity transmission lines and their supporting pylons are visible 
elements in the countryside leading towards and away from the substation, but the local 
landscape retains its inherent peaceful pastoral character with important areas of ancient 
woodland, such as Park Copse and Stonehill Wood, amongst others, surviving remnants of 
Braydon Forest, a former Royal Hunting Forest. Alongside this, the area has a strong nature 
conservation value / denoted by the local clustering of SSSI’s and the areas of deciduous 
broadleaved woodland and areas of neutral/unimproved meadow present in the surrounding 
landscape. The area is sparsely settled, due to its historic use as a royal hunting forest and its 
comparatively more recent enclosure as farmland. The sparse rural settlement, presence of 
woodland and common land all contributes to this areas inherent rural, tranquil character. The 
presence of a water tower or the pylons crossing this landscape does not significantly alter the 
inherent peaceful character of the countryside, but the character of countryside around Minety 
Substation continues to decline from piecemeal industrialising development radiating outwards”. 
 
The Officer also questions whether the applications for BESSs and Solar PV are the reason why 
there is a need to extend Minety Substation; there is a “need to understand and establish whether 
the large number of BESS and solar PV applications in this locality are the drivers for the harmful 
expansion of Minety Substation, especially as BESS /Solar farm applicants often justify the 
reason why these developments are being proposed in this local area in the first place is due to 
National Grid’s available grid connection capacity. If this turns out not to be the case, then the 
expansion of the substation site itself is a direct effect and consequence of these locally clustering 
renewable energy generation schemes and energy storage developments”. 
 
National Grid advised as part of its planning application (ref PL/2022/09258) to extend the 
substation that it had identified the need to extend the existing operational Minety 400kV 
Substation for a combination of the following reasons: 

 Demand growth on the SSE network. 
 Connection of embedded generation to SSE network. 
 Connection of generation to National Grid network. 

 
Embedded generation includes combined heat and power (CHP) plants, onshore wind, solar 
farms, and storage devices such as lithium-ion batteries. 
 

Page 45



 

 

National Grid advised it is aware of nine customers connecting directly into the expanded Minety 
400kV substation but it is possible that other developments are connecting via the local 
Distribution Network Operator (DNO). The DNO apply to National Grid for additional capacity 
which enables an assessment of available and required capacity. National Grid advised that at 
Minety, this assessment has generated the need for a further SuperGrid Transformer which forms 
part of application ref PL/2022/09258, and other than the nine customers connecting directly to 
National Grid whose grid capacity is dependent upon the application, National Grid cannot 
comment on other planning applications and whether they have secured grid capacity as this 
would be via the DNO.  
 
The information from National Grid indicates there is a clear demand to increase the capacity of 
the network as advised by the local DNO. The BESSs are part of National Grid Strategy to 
strengthen the network but are implemented and operated by third parties such as the applicants 
of the BESS applications. There is therefore a clear locational requirement for the BESSs 
adjacent to the Minety substation or within the area where a connection is possible. However, the 
cumulative impacts of all developments has to be considered and any adverse impacts 
considered within the overall planning balance.  
 
The current applications for BESSs, as listed below, are supported by Landscape and Visual 
Assessments and application PL/2022/05504, which is directly adjacent to the substation, 
includes a Cumulative Impact Assessment (September 2023) by RedBayDesign.     
 

- PL/2022/02824 - Land at Somerford Farm, Brinkworth 
- PL/2022/04524 - Land east of Ravensroost Road, Ravenshurst Farm, Minety 
- PL/2022/05412 - Land off Dog Trap Lane, Minety 
- PL/2022/05504 - Land at Stonehill, Minety, Wiltshire 

 
The Cumulative Impact Assessment is based on data provided by the Council and considers the 
potential cumulative impact from energy generation / storage developments within a 10km study 
area. The assessment considers landscape and visual effects and sets out a clear methodology 
and criteria for assessing the potential impacts. The report mentions that “Wiltshire Council 
identified an additional 19 Renewable Energy sites and Minety Substation Extension within 10Km 
of the application site. Upon undertaking desk top and field study work It was considered that a 
good number of these schemes would likely not contribute to cumulative effects due to the 
distances involved combined with the discrete nature of the schemes” (par 5.1). However, the 
following were subject to a cumulative Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment because the 
sites are all directly adjacent to the substation and could all be viewed as one cluster of energy 
related developments:-   

- PL/2022/05504  
- 20/03528 (Approved) PV Solar 
- 19/11460 (Approved) BESS 
- 17/03936 (Approved) BESS 
- 17/03941 (Constructed 2023) BESS 
- 21/04151 (Approved) BESS 
- 20/07390 (Approved) BESS 
- 22/09258 (Planning) Substation extension 

 
The Cumulative Impact Assessment concludes by stating it is considered that cumulative impact 
of application scheme [PL/2022/05504] over and above the consented schemes and planned 
substation extension would have a Slight Adverse impact to the landscape character of the study 
area. This is due to the increased number of this type of development into the area where there is 
a concentrated number of other consented and constructed schemes. Having said this the 
opportunities to experience the proposed schemes in isolation is limited and with very limited 

Page 46



 

 

opportunity to experience two or more schemes at the same time, this being a short section of 
Public Footpath CHAR 16. Of all the schemes the application site [PL/2022/05504] would be the 
least noticeable due to its location within a discrete field being located some way from the 
footpath” (par 5.2). 
 
“Due to the low lying undulating topography and the intervening vegetation there is very little 
opportunity for inter-visibility between the proposed energy sites. There may be some potential for 
combination effects along CHAR 16 between the application site, Minety Phase 3, the Solar 
scheme and the Substation extension, with the application scheme being the least noticeable of 
the three. From here the contribution of the application site would be negligible” (par 5.4). 
 
The proposed BESSs the subject of this application PL/2022/05412 (Land off Dog Trap Lane, 
Minety) and applications PL/2022/02824 (Land at Somerford Farm, Brinkworth) and 
PL/2022/04524 (Land east of Ravensroost Road, Ravenshurst Farm, Minety) are not immediately 
located adjacent to the Minety Substation and are all isolated. The individual Landscape and 
Visual Impacts Assessments for each proposal conclude that the developments would be well 
contained within the local landscape due to the topography of the land and natural screening, 
along with proposed mitigation measures in the form of structural landscaping. The developments 
would not be located within a sensitive landscape and would not be visible from the same point, 
and only glimpsed views would be experienced if travelling along the local highway network. It is 
however considered that the introduction of a number of BESSs within the area, alongside solar 
photovoltaic developments, will mean they become a notable features within the local landscape, 
albeit they will not become a defining characteristic of the landscape due to the magnitude of the 
predicated landscape impacts and the limited range of viewpoints where all developments would 
be visible from. It is therefore considered that the proposed BESSs developments away from the 
substation would not have an unacceptable cumulative landscape and visual impact. 
 
10. Conclusion  
 
The proposed development is for the installation of a Battery Energy Storage System (BESS) with 
a capacity of c.50MW. The development would store power from the national grid at times of 
excess supply and would feed this power back into the grid at times of high demand/reduced 
generation capacity. 
 
The proposed development would introduce an uncharacteristic industrial form of development on 
the site which currently forms part of the open undeveloped rural landscape. However, the impact 
of the proposal from a landscape and visual perspective will be localised and mitigated through a 
soft landscape design scheme. Furthermore, despite being isolated within the rural landscape, 
there are locational factors that influence the siting of battery storage facilities, primarily the 
provision of access to unrestricted network capacity, proximity to a financially viable access to the 
national grid and point of connection, availability of suitable land and the proximity of a point of 
access to the highway network. The proposed development meets each of these key 
considerations and the site is not located within any protected landscape, and identified issues of 
ecology, landscaping, highways and drainage can be satisfactorily addressed by appropriate 
conditions. 
 
There would be a positive public benefit in the form of energy security and the ability to store 
excess energy and thereby a saving of carbon emissions contributing towards government 
supported goal of a reduction in such emissions. No unacceptable residential or visual amenity 
issues would arise. The proposed development will be well screened albeit it is acknowledged 
that the proposed development will be visible from public footpaths near the site. The proposed 
access and local highway network are capable of accommodating the low level and frequency of 
construction and operational traffic movements. 

Page 47



 

 

 
There are no objections from any statutory consultees. As such, while there continue to be 
concerns locally about the impact of the proposed develop and the number of similar 
developments within the area, on balance, significant weight is given to the potential of the 
development to contribute towards the strengthening of the electricity network and climate change 
objectives, and due to the lack of conflict with the development plan, it is recommended that 
planning permission be granted.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The recommendation is to grant planning permission subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 
 
REASON: To comply with the provisions of Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

2. Within six months of the commencement on site, a scheme for the decommissioning and 
restoration of the development shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, the details of which shall include how the land will be restored back to fully 
agricultural use, apart from the retention of the planting as a valuable addition to the 
landscape, upon the development no longer being in operation or upon the expiry date of 40 
years from the date of the development starting to feed electricity to the Grid, whichever is 
sooner. The Decommissioning and Restoration scheme of this development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the scheme so agreed. 
 
REASON: To ensure upon the development no longer being in use, the complete removal of 
all development allowed under this permission and the restoration of the land to its former 
condition. 

 
3. The Local Planning Authority shall be notified in writing within one month of the event that the 

development hereby approved has started to feed or take electricity to/from the Grid. The 
installation hereby approved shall be permanently removed from the site and the surface 
reinstated within 40 years and six months of the date of notification and the local planning 
authority shall be notified in writing of that removal within one month of the event. 

 
REASON: In the interests of amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 

4. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the details shown 
in the following approved plans: 
 
 Drawing. 3075-01-01 Rev B Site Location Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-02 Rev B Statutory Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-03 Rev B General Arrangement 
 Drawing. 3075-01-04 Battery Storage Container 
 Drawing. 3075-01-05 Inverter-Transformer Stations 
 Drawing. 3075-01-06 Transformer 
 Drawing. 3075-01-07 Switchgear Container 
 Drawing. 3075-01-08 LV Switchgear Container 
 Drawing. 3075-01-09 Fencing and Security 
 Drawing. 3075-01-10 Rev B Existing Site Plan 
 Drawing. 3075-01-11 Site Access Arrangements 
 Drawing. 3075-01-12 Landscape Design 

Page 48



 

 

 
REASON: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 
5. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plans, no development shall commence 

on site until details of the materials, colour and finish of any built structures and containers, 
poles, fencing, gates etc., have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details 
prior to the development being first brought into use and retained as such for the lifetime of 
the development. 
 
REASON: In the interests of visual amenity and the character and appearance of the area. 
 
NOTE: The use of neutral earth tone colours for elevational building / container treatments 
(including roof materials) and security fencing is important in this rural area. The use of white 
finishes on containers and battery storage units or other infrastructure elements must be 
avoided, set against dark landscape backdrops of woodland and trees etc. 
 

6. No demolition, site clearance or development shall commence on site, and; no equipment, 
machinery or materials shall be brought on to site for the purpose of development, until the 
trees to be protected and retained, as identified within Arboricutlrual Impact Assessment and 
the Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) by ARBTECH and shown on the Tree Protection 
Plan (drawing no.3075-01-03 Rev B), including tree ref.T23 Oak, have been enclosed by 
protective fencing, in accordance with British Standard 5837 (2005): Trees in Relation to 
Construction. 
 
The protective fencing shall remain in place for the entire development phase and until all 
equipment, machinery and surplus materials have been removed from the site. Such fencing 
shall not be removed or breached during construction operations and no vehicle, plant, 
temporary building or materials, including raising and or, lowering of ground levels, shall be 
allowed within the protected areas. 
 
No retained tree/s shall be cut down, uprooted or destroyed, nor shall any retained tree/s be 
topped or lopped other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars. Any 
topping or lopping approval shall be carried out in accordance British Standard 3998: 2010 
“Tree Work – Recommendations” or arboricultural techniques where it can be demonstrated to 
be in the interest of good arboricultural practise. 
 
If any retained tree is removed, uprooted, destroyed or dies, another tree shall be planted at 
the same place, at a size and species and planted at such time, that must be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
[In this condition “retained tree” means an existing tree which is to be retained in accordance 
with the approved plans and particulars; and paragraphs above shall have effect until the 
expiration of five years from the first occupation or the completion of the development, 
whichever is the later]. 
 
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site 
in the interests of visual amenity. 

 
7. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in full accordance with the 

Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) by ARBTECH.  
 

Page 49



 

 

 REASON: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be 
retained on and adjacent to the site will not be damaged during the construction works and to 
ensure that as far as possible the work is carried out in accordance with current best practice 
and section 197 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990. 

 
8. The proposed soft landscaping scheme, as shown on the Landscape Design drawing (no. 

3075-01-12), shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding season following the first 
operation of the development or the completion of the development whichever is the sooner, 
or in accordance with a schedule and timetable to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. All shrubs, trees and hedge planting shall be maintained free from weeds and shall 
be protected from damage by vermin and stock. Any trees or plants which, within a period of 
five years, die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in 
the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To ensure a satisfactory landscaped setting for the development and the protection 
of existing important landscape features. 
 

9. No development shall commence on site until details of all earthworks have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include the 
proposed grading and mounding of land areas including the levels and contours to be formed, 
and the nature and source of the material, showing the relationship of proposed mounding to 
existing vegetation and surrounding landform. The details shall also include details of the 
proposed level and method of construction of the access road works associated with the 
proposed surface water drainage scheme. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the details approved under this condition.    
 
REASON: To enable the Local Planning Authority to ensure the retention of trees on the site 
and consider and approve the precise scope of earthworks and levels in the interests of visual 
amenity.   
 

10. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in full accordance with the 
recommendations, mitigation measures, and enhancement measures detailed within the 
Ecological Assessment (July 2022) by avian ecology and shown on the Landscape Design 
drawing (no. 3075-01-12).   
 
REASON: To mitigate against the loss of existing biodiversity and nature habitats and secure 
enhancements.  

 
11. Prior to the commencement of development, including demolition, ground works/excavation, 

site clearance, vegetation clearance and boundary treatment works, a Construction 
Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) prepared in accordance with Section 4 of the 
Ecological Assessment.  Embedded in Design Planning and Access Statement – Appendix B 
– Ecology Assessment V4 (Avian Ecology, 25/09/2021) shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority for approval in writing. The Plan shall provide details of the avoidance, 
mitigation and protective measures to be implemented before and during the construction 
phase, including but not necessarily limited to, the following: 

a) Identification of ecological protection areas/buffer zones and tree root protection areas 
and details of physical means of protection, e.g. exclusion fencing. 

b) Working method statements for protected/priority species, such as nesting birds, great 
crested newts and reptiles. 

Page 50



 

 

c) Work schedules for activities with specific timing requirements in order to avoid/reduce 
potential harm to ecological receptors; including details of when a licensed ecologist 
and/or ecological clerk of works (ECoW) shall be present on site. 

d) Key personnel, responsibilities and contact details (including Site Manager and 
ecologist/ECoW). 

e) Timeframe for provision of compliance report to the local planning authority; to be 
completed by the ecologist/ECoW and to include photographic evidence. 

 
Development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the approved CEMP. 
 
REASON: To ensure adequate protection and mitigation for ecological receptors prior to and 
during construction, and that works are undertaken in line with current best practice and 
industry standards and are supervised by a suitably licensed and competent professional 
ecological consultant where applicable. 
 
 

12. Prior to the commencement of development, a Landscape and Ecology Management Plan 
(LEMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
LEMP will include long term objectives and targets, management responsibilities and 
maintenance schedules for each ecological feature within the development, together with a 
mechanism for monitoring success of the management prescriptions, incorporating review and 
necessary adaptive management in order to attain biodiversity enhancement targets within the 
submitted Metric 3.0 V4 and Section 4 of the Ecological Assessment.  Embedded in Design 
Planning and Access Statement – Appendix B – Ecology Assessment V4 (Avian Ecology, 
25/09/2021). 
 
The LEMP shall also include details of the legal and funding mechanism(s) by which long-term 
implementation of the plan will be secured. The LEMP shall be implemented in full and for the 
lifetime of the development in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON:  To ensure the long-term management of landscape and ecological features 
retained and created by the development, for the benefit of visual amenity and biodiversity for 
the lifetime of the scheme. 
 

13. The noise attenuation measures detailed in the Noise Assessment (May 2022) by Noise 
Vibration Consultants Ltd or any updated noise reports submitted for approval by the local 
planning authority prior to commencement of development shall be implemented prior to first 
operation of the development and thereafter be permanently retained.  
 
Reason: To protect local amenity from adverse effects of noise. 
 

14. A post installation noise assessment shall be carried out within 3 months of completion of the 
development to confirm compliance with the submitted Noise Assessment (May 2022) by 
Noise Vibration Consultants Ltd (or any updated noise reports approved by the local planning 
authority) and submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. Any additional 
steps required to achieve compliance shall thereafter be taken in accordance with a timetable 
to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority. The details as submitted and approved shall 
be implemented and thereafter be permanently retained. 
 
Reason: To protect local amenity from adverse effects of noise. 
 

15. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plan, no external artificial lighting shall be 
used or installed on site until lux contour plots/lighting contour plans for all proposed lighting 

Page 51



 

 

have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
plots/plans must demonstrate that bat habitat to be retained will be maintained as ‘dark 
corridors’. Details of mitigation measures that would be implemented where necessary, to 
minimise light spill shall also be provided. Lighting proposals shall be in accordance with the 
appropriate Environmental Zone standards set out by the Institution of Lighting Professionals 
in their Guidance Note GN01/21 ‘The Reduction of Obtrusive Light’ and their Guidance Note 
GN08-18 ‘Bats and artificial lighting in the UK’, issued jointly with the Bat Conservation Trust. 
 
Lighting at the site shall be in strict accordance with the approved details and no additional 
external lighting shall be installed either during construction or operation unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
REASON: To minimise light spill and to minimise potential for adverse effects on bats and 
other wildlife. 
 

16. No development shall commence until a Construction and Environmental Management Plan 
(CEMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 
CEMP shall include details of the following relevant measures: 

i. An introduction consisting of construction phase environmental management plan, 
definitions and abbreviations and project description and location; 

ii. A description of management responsibilities; 
iii. A description of the construction programme; 
iv. Site working hours and a named person for residents to contact; 
v. Details of vehicle routing to the site  
vi. Detailed site logistics arrangements; 
vii. Details regarding parking, deliveries, and storage; 
viii. Details of the measures to control the emission of dust, dirt and noise during 

construction; 
ix. Details of the hours of works and other measures to mitigate the impact of 

construction on the amenity of the area and safety of the highway network; and 
x. Communication procedures with the LPA and local community regarding key 

construction issues – newsletters, fliers etc. 
 
 The approved CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction 

period strictly in accordance with the approved details. 
 
REASON: To minimise detrimental effects to the neighbouring amenities, the amenities of the 
area in general, detriment to the natural environment through the risks of pollution and 
dangers to highway safety, during the construction phase. 

 
17. No development shall commence until a pre-construction highway photographic survey to be 

carried out along Dog Trap Lane from its junction with the B4040 has been carried out. Upon 
completion of the construction phases, a post construction survey shall be carried out at the 
same location. Details and results of both before and after survey shall have been submitted 
to the Council as the Highway Authority within 3 months of the first operation of the 
development. Those submitted details and results shall be accompanied by a plan and timing 
schedule for the repair of any damage identified and attributable to the construction of the 
development, to be carried out at the expense of the applicant, which shall have been agreed 
in writing with the Local Planning Authority beforehand. 
 
REASON: To secure a scheme for the repair of the public highway following completion of 
substantive construction works 

 

Page 52



 

 

18. No development shall commence on site until the first 20m of the access, measured from the 
edge of the carriageway has been consolidated and surfaced (not loose stone or gravel). The 
access shall be maintained as such thereafter. 

 
REASON: In the interests of highway safety 

 
19. No development shall commence on site until the visibility splays shown on the approved 

plans (drawing no. 3075-01-11 Proposed Site Access Arrangements) have been provided 
with no obstruction to visibility at or above a height of 900mm above the nearside 
carriageway level. The visibility splays shall always be maintained free of obstruction 
thereafter. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 

 
20. Notwithstanding the contents of the Flood Risk & Water Drainage Assessment (June 2022) by 

KRS Environmental, no development shall commence on site until a scheme for the discharge 
of surface water from the site (including surface water from the access / gravel areas), 
incorporating sustainable drainage details together with permeability test results to BRE365 
and showing in improvement in discharge rate from the site, has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be first brought 
into use until surface water drainage has been constructed in accordance with the approved 
scheme.  
 
REASON: To comply with Core Policy 67: Flood Risk of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted 
January 2015) and to ensure that the development can be adequately drained without 
increasing flood risk to others. 
 
NOTE: The Lead Local Flood Authority advises that the following points will need to be 
addressed as part of final proposed surface water drainage scheme:- 
 It is noted from the drainage strategy that the applicant proposes to discharge to an 

existing ordinary watercourse. 
a. The drainage strategy drawing does not show the receiving watercourse / waterbody; 

the strategy drawings should be updated to show the connectivity between the outfall 
and the receiving watercourse / waterbody. 

b. If required to cross third-party land, the applicant must provide evidence of 
permissions to cross third party land and permissions from riparian owners to 
discharge to the watercourse/river in perpetuity. There is no automatic right to cross 
third party land or discharge to a watercourse/river not in ownership of the applicant. 

 It is noted that the applicant proposes to discharge surface water flows to the south of the 
site (assisted by a pumped discharge): 
a. Justification should be provided as to why a gravity system cannot be achieved. 
b. As discharge to the south is against the natural topography of the site (and therefore 

relates in sub-catchment transfer on site), the applicant shall confirm that the receiving 
waterbody & ordinary watercourse have sufficient capacity to accept the (albeit 
restricted) surface water discharges without increasing local flood risk.   

 It is noted that the applicant has proposed to limit discharge rates to 1.1l/s, although it is 
acknowledged within the report that the Qbar rate for the site is 1.0l/s . The applicant is 
therefore required to update calculations to restrict discharge rates to 1l/s, or provide 
justification as to why this cannot be achieved.  

 The submitted calculations show that flows will be restricted using a Hydrobrake, however 
the drainage strategy indicates that flow control will be provided by a pumped discharge. 
The hydraulic calculations are required to be updated in order to show the pumped 
discharge from the detention basin. 

Page 53



 

 

 The applicant is required to provide the following additional calculations: 
- Calculations and drawings for the drainage system design showing conveyance 

routes are designed to convey without flooding the critical 1 in 30 year + 35% 
climate change rainfall event. 

 The applicant is required to submit a drawing demonstrating how overland exceedance 
flows in excess of the 1 in 100yr rainfall will be safely managed on site in order to prevent 
an increase in flood risk to adjacent people / land / property. 

 
21. No development shall commence on site until details of the drainage arrangements during the 

construction phase have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
REASON: To comply with Core Policy 67: Flood Risk of the Wiltshire Core Strategy (adopted 
January 2015) and to ensure that the development can be adequately drained without 
increasing flood risk to others and to manage the risk of pollution during the construction 
phase. 
 

22. In the event that contamination is identified or encountered at any time when carrying out the 
approved development, the Local Planning Authority must be advised of the steps that will be 
taken by an appropriate contractor; to deal with contamination and provide a written remedial 
statement to be followed be a written verification report that confirms what works that have 
been undertaken to render the development suitable for use. 
 
REASON: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 

INFORMATIVE 
The term ‘commencement of development’, as used within these planning conditions, refers to 
any development associated with the site excluding the first 20m of access into the site. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
The applicant should note that under the terms of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (1981) and the 
Habitats Regulations (2010) it is an offence to disturb or harm any protected species, or to 
damage or disturb their habitat or resting place. Please note that this consent does not override 
the statutory protection afforded to any such species. In the event that your proposals could 
potentially affect a protected species you should seek the advice of a suitably qualified and 
experienced ecologist and consider the need for a licence from Natural England prior to 
commencing works. Please see Natural England’s website for further information on protected 
species. 

 
INFORMATIVE 
The attention of the applicant is drawn to the recommendations made by the Dorset and Wiltshire 
Fire and Rescue Service as outlined within their consultation response to the application, dated 
16 December 2022, and the guidance produced by the National Fire Chiefs Council, as referred to 
within the Planning practice Guidance on Battery Energy Storage Systems (Paragraph: 034 
Reference ID: 5-034-20230814).  
 
INFORMATIVE 
The application involves an extension to the existing/creation of a new vehicle access/dropped 
kerb. The consent hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out works on the 
highway. The applicant is advised that a licence will be required from Wiltshire’s Highway 

Page 54



 

 

Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath, carriageway, verge or other 
land forming part of the highway. Please contact our Vehicle Crossing Team on 
vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk and/or 01225 713352 or visit their website at 
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets to make an application. 

 
INFORMATIVE 
No gates, fences or stiles should be erected across the public right of way without prior 
consultation and approval from the Rights of Way team Countryside Access Officer (contact 
rightsofway@wiltshire.gov.uk) in order to comply with section 147 of the Highways Act 1980. 
Unauthorised structures across a right of way are an obstruction and gates may only be 
authorised for the control of stock. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
A drainage ditch may need to be accommodated within access design proposals which runs along 
the east side of the Dog Trap Lane and the site. Advice should be sought from the Land Drainage 
Team in order to accommodate the ditch appropriately within the access plans. The new access 
may require a Section 278 highways agreement/permit in order to deliver the access proposals 
and the ditch crossing. 

 
INFORMATIVE 
Wiltshire Council is the land drainage authority under the Land Drainage Act 1991. Land drainage 
consent is required if a development proposes to discharge flow into an ordinary watercourse or 
carry out work within 8m of an ordinary watercourse. 

 
An ordinary watercourse is a watercourse that does not form part of a main river. The term 
watercourse includes all rivers and streams and all ditches, drains, cuts, culverts, dikes, sluices, 
sewers (other than public sewers within the meaning of the Water Industry Act 1991) and 
passages, through which water flows. 
 
INFORMATIVE 
 
For Protected Species 
There is a risk that protected species (great crested newts / reptiles/ dormice/ bats) could occur 
on the application site. These species are legally protected and planning permission does not 
provide a defence against prosecution. In order to minimise the risk of these species occurring on 
the site, the developer is advised to clear vegetation in line with the recommendations made in the 
Section 4 of the Ecological Assessment.  Embedded in Design Planning and Access Statement – 
Appendix B – Ecology Assessment V4 (Avian Ecology, 25/09/2021).and as advised the 
contracted ecologist. If these species are unexpectedly found during the works, the applicant is 
advised to stop work and follow advice from the contracted ecologist. 
 

Page 55

mailto:vehicleaccess@wiltshire.gov.uk
http://wiltshire.gov.uk/highways-streets
mailto:rightsofway@wiltshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	Minutes

	6 Planning Appeals and Updates
	7 PL/2022/05412: Land off Dog Trap Lane, Minety
	PL.2022.05412 - Location plan




